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Proceedings 4

(Commencement of proceedings at 12:42 p.m.)

THE COURT: -- seat. We're here in Smith versus

Honeywell again. Why don't we start with appearances of

counsel?

MR. KANNER: Allan Kanner and Lilly Peterson from

Kanner & Whitely for class plaintiffs.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. BEREZOFSKY: Esther Berezofsky, Williams, Cuker

& Berezofsky for the plaintiffs.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GERMAN: Good afternoon, Your Honor, Steven

German of German Rubenstein for plaintiffs.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SUGGS: Ken Suggs of Janet Jenner & Suggs for

the plaintiff, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Joel Rubenstein of German

Rubenstein for the plaintiffs.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. McDONALD: Hello, Your Honor, Michael McDonald

from Gibbons for Honeywell International.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KATERBERG: Robert Katerberg from

Arnold & Porter for Honeywell.
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Proceedings 5

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GERSCH: David Gersch, Your Honor, from Arnold

& Porter for Honeywell.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. COUGHLIN: Timothy Coughlin from Thompson Hine

for PPG Industries.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LAGROTTERIA: Good afternoon, Your Honor, Joe

Lagrotteria of LeClairRyan on behalf of PPG.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. WALKER: Karol Corbin Walker with LeClairRyan

on behalf of PPG.

THE COURT: Last but not least.

MS. WALKER: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you for the joint

discovery plan. And I read it thoroughly. And I think a

bet- -- the best way to proceed today is sort of to tell you

where I'm headed and let everyone respond to some of the

bigger, overarching issues until -- and then we can get into

the nitty-gritty of dates and times and deadlines.

And I think that the real overarching issue is this

whole dispute between the plaintiffs and defendants over

whether class discovery and class motions should proceed in

advance of some bellwether trials. And here's what I'm

guided by, and I'd really like to hear responses from
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Proceedings 6

plaintiff on this.

I'm guided by Rule 23 which says that as -- as

early as practicable time after a plaintiff brings a lawsuit

that class issues should be discovered. And in this

District, that is the practice. The practice is to tee up

the class certification issues consistent with the rule,

which means as soon as practicable.

There is always overlap between merits and class

discovery; everybody in this room knows that. But there's a

way to use -- there's no magic formula to say -- to cut -- to

make the demarcation, but most good lawyers can agree that if

I'm taking a plaintiff's disposition, I might as well cover

all topics and spend another three hours or four hours than

call the plain- -- the deponent back at a later phase. And

if both sides have some flexibility, it's been my experience

and practice that they can find ways to put whole chunks of

discovery on hold, but to be flexible and use common sense

and good efficient use of lawyers' time and court time to

maybe overlap and go forward with some limited discovery to

the extent it would advance principles of efficiency. And

you take it on a issue-by-issue basis; there's no magic

formula.

I am not aware in this District of any cases like

this where before in advance of a class certification motion,

that there was bellwether trials. I'm not aware of it. I
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think it's unprecedented in this District. If there is

any -- if plaintiffs would like to shed some light on that

for me, I'd be interested in hearing about it. But to -- to

take -- to start trials, to have summary judgment, to have

trials, summary judgment just on the individual claims,

there's property claims, there's medical monitoring claims,

and then after all the bellwether trials are done, then to

have class certification motions, I think that's what

plaintiffs were proposing, I just don't -- I'm not aware of

it ever being done here. I'm not aware of it being done

anywhere. I'm aware of the federal rule that says you tee up

the class motions first, see where that falls out, if there's

no class, then what we're left with is -- is named

plaintiffs, and then we proceed on those cases.

As I'm aware right now, we have only two named

plaintiffs; correct?

MR. KANNER: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So that's what I'm inclined to do.

MR. KANNER: There's three, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. -- Ms. Smith, Ms. Halley, and I

guess Mr. Wein.

So I'm inclined to proceed in accordance with the

precedent in this District as well as the Fed. R. Civ. P. 23,

tee everything up for class certification, and then see where

that takes us, but I'm certainly willing to hear limited
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arguments from plaintiffs' counsel about why I should proceed

otherwise.

MR. KANNER: Your Honor, Alan Kanner.

First, the "as soon as practicable" language was

modified, as you're probably aware, because what more and

more judges were doing, they were stretching the time out

because they didn't like the old practice, which was class

actions on very limited papers. And clearly both the manual

of complex litigation and the new language has moved beyond

the "as soon as practicable." The language is -- it uses the

word "practicable" -- like I can't recall the exact language,

but it has been liberalized.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KANNER: In addition, we're in the Third

Circuit. We have to deal with Hydrogen Peroxide on any

certification matter. And the Hydrogen Peroxide case, what

the Third Circuit really said is you're going to look a lot

at the merits. You're going to have to talk about with some

specificity about how you're going to try the case.

THE COURT: I hear you on that. But I have a

different question.

MR. KANNER: Okay.

THE COURT: And that is, where in this District or

even within the Circuit have the courts put this

classification certification off after the trial? What
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you're suggesting here is to have bellwether trials first,

and then after a jury makes conclusions, then decide whether

to certify it as a class. That's what I don't -- I don't --

I'm not aware of ever being done at all in this District.

MR. KANNER: I'm not aware of it being done in this

District.

THE COURT: Has it been done anywhere?

MR. KANNER: I believe --

THE COURT: In federal court?

MR. KANNER: Southern District of Alabama.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KANNER: They did some bellwether trials, and

then certify- --

THE COURT: Before class certification?

MR. KANNER: Before class certification, yes.

But -- but actually I'm not using that case as a

precedent. I'm just asking the Court to focus for a

second -- let's get away from the abstraction of just

class -- class action.

What we have here essentially is -- is kind of a

mass tort. I mean there are hundreds, thousands, tens of

thousands of people involved. We represent hundreds of

people already.

At some point in time, we have to decide how to

best manage it. Based on our collective experience on this

Case 2:10-cv-03345-ES-CLW   Document 66   Filed 07/18/11   Page 9 of 62 PageID: 1711Case 2:10-cv-03345-ES-JAD   Document 456-2   Filed 09/13/17   Page 10 of 63 PageID: 10744



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Proceedings 10

side of the table, we believe that ultimately it ought to be

a class action. We understand that that's a fairly heavy

lift on some of these issues. And one of the things that we

help -- we think would help the Court in light of Hydrogen

Peroxide, where they say look at the merits, rather than

having this argued abstractly about what the merits, how we

would try our cases, let's have a trial or two. Then I think

the Court will be able to say, geez, I see that these are not

overwhelmingly individual issues. I see these are mostly

common questions about the dangers of chromium, et cetera,

the economic impacts on property owners. It could be done by

modeling for the most part.

So what I'm -- what I'm saying is there's been a

growing recognition in federal courts throughout the United

States, including the District of New Jersey, that the old

"as soon as practicable" was -- was more of -- of a hindrance

than a help. The federal rules, the advisory committee

liberalized it --

THE COURT: I hear you. But there's certain -- it

hasn't been so liberalized to say do it after the trial.

MR. KANNER: Okay. No, that's --

THE COURT: It just doesn't exist. I mean it's --

they may have done it, there may be an anomalous case in

Alabama, but -- and I'm with you on complex cases. It's not

immediately. There are experts. There are issues that need
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to be explored that are complicated.

But this is how it works. You file your motion.

There's a class. If it's certified, it changes the dynamic.

If it's not certified, then you proceed with individual

cases.

MR. KANNER: That's fine.

It wasn't my intent today or in our submittal to

commit the Court to a bellwether trial. If it -- if it says

that, I apologize.

Our intent was merely to say this may be a tool, a

case management tool that Your Honor could go for.

Separate and apart from that, on discovery, let's

talk about the bifurcation of discovery or not. In my

experience -- I don't know about your experience -- in New

Jersey and other places, invariably, you end up with a lot of

fights about what is class and what is merits. And I think

parties waste a lot of time.

THE COURT: Well, let me ask you this question.

Let me focus you on this question. What do you see --

they -- the defendants can see that there is a -- overlap.

They're not saying -- you know, they give some lists. They

actually in their joint discovery plan and in the proposed

schedule Exhibit B, they go through -- and it's hard for me

to get a handle on it because I'm not you and I don't know

what's out there. But they -- they list a whole bunch of
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issues that -- and they know that they're not going to come

and say it's -- it is cut off easily like in an FLSA case.

It's not going to be that simple.

And because you have these overlap -- when you look

at issues like -- common issues of law and fact, numerosity,

typicality, you know, especially when you're looking at

common issues of law and fact, you're going to have to look

to some degree on what happened, liability for the -- for the

medical monitoring -- for the property diminution, is

probably simpler to deal with -- but for the medical

monitoring and the environmental consequences of what

happened.

But -- I guess, what wholesale category of

discovery do you see -- do you sense they would be unwilling

to give you in class discovery?

MR. KANNER: Well, I think -- I think a lot of

things. You have, for example, some of the liability issues.

They're -- they're willing to do a who, what, where, when,

but a lot of the decisions to leave the material, decisions

about how clean is clean, decisions about timing, things of

that sort I think are going to be very fundamental in any

trial, that perhaps the kind of information that reflects

poorly on -- on a particular company. And I understand their

hesitancy, but I think it's going to be --

THE COURT: But how -- how key is that, that level
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of detail to a class certification motion? That's really --

I hear you that at the end of the day, if you get past that,

it's going to be relevant. And why can't some of those

issues be put on hold until we decide whether we have a class

sometime next year?

MR. KANNER: I think because the following.

This -- I think every case you have to approach based on --

on the situation you're dealing with. Here, for example, you

have a lot of discovery that has been done over the years; I

think they've been under administrative order since the

1980s, et cetera. I don't understand why we would start, you

know -- I think it's more efficient to try to get at the

existing body of knowledge that has been put together on

numerous occasions in the past than to artificially sort of

start as if nothing had ever happened, and let's -- let's try

to save certain areas from discovery. I mean a lot of work

has gone into understanding these sites, I'm sure. I -- I'm

not saying -- I don't understand why we would start drawing

lines in it, if that information exists. I think we -- in

some 30(b)(6) depositions, we could find out more about it.

I mean, if it's there and it's not something we're creating

new, I don't see any reason for -- for leaving it -- leaving

it out.

But I will tell you this and, you know, for years

I've had defendants say, let's bifurcate, bifurcate,
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bifurcate, and then when you get to trial and they've got an

expert who's using document -- to the class, got an expert

who's using documents, talking about the merits of the case.

I mean if the defendants said that they're going to limit

their Hydrogen Peroxide arguments --

THE COURT: But they'd have -- they'd have to

say -- no, they'd have to say that. I mean, I don't know

where you have tried cases, but in this courthouse and with

Judge Wigenton, experts are not -- at a class certification

hearing, are not going to start talking about issues and

documents that weren't disclosed in discovery and weren't

part of the discovery in a class of this case. They know

that. And if they're going to rely on it, they're going to

disclose it, and it's going to be part of the discussion.

MR. KANNER: But it -- it's -- actually I would go

one step further, just taking that example of an expert, they

said, for example, well, let's look at all the public

information about the health hazards of chromium, and

presumably that would be discovered, an expert would get up

there and, well, if you look at the public literature, X, Y,

and Z.

Now, what often happens in these cases is there are

internal analyses of what the health hazards are and the

company's own understanding about that. One of the things

you would want to cross-examine that expert with is what the
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company knew, when did they know it, and what did they --

what did they do about it, if anything. I think that's going

to also give some weight, because --

THE COURT: I hear you, but, you know, here's --

here's the problem. Let me just tell you where I'm headed.

I'm not going to say full merits discovery. This case is

overwhelmingly large, and my experience has been when you

open that door, we're in discovery for four years and there's

a million documents. And the more documents you get, the

more depositions you want to take, the more everyone gets

lost in the depositions, and now we're in 2014 and we still

haven't filed class certification motions yet. That's my

impression on that.

MR. KANNER: Well --

THE COURT: I hear you. But there's ways to

address things like that. You're right. There's a lot of

information out there, and you're also right that you're very

experienced in this area, and you know what you're looking

for. And there is a way -- for instance, my answer to a

smart lawyer, like there are in this room, if you get an

expert report from a defense expert and he talks about public

information, it would be completely reasonable to ask in

discovery before you took his deposition, what he relied on,

were there any other studies out there, so you could

cross-examine him at a deposition before you even got to
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trial.

So there's ways to address it, rather than say, I

want the entire universe, because the universe will be large.

And you may be entitled to the universe, but the minutiae of

every detail of the expert report on liability or the expert

opinion doesn't need to be addressed at the class

certification stage. And my experience is I hear -- I hear

that -- you -- the frustration not getting everything,

because all lawyers want everything.

But my -- my concern is you get bogged down in too

much information. And this is a class certification motion.

You don't have to prove anything except common commonality,

typicality, these people should be in one case.

MR. KANNER: Actually I don't want everything.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. KANNER: Okay? I've been in too many cases --

THE COURT: Good. I hope -- that's smart, because

you know, everything is bad.

MR. KANNER: Well -- well, in fact, you know, one

of the things we -- Ms. Berezofsky wrote the defendants

asking, hey, maybe there's a way we don't have to reinvent

the wheel. Okay? We've been around this barn before.

You've -- I think there are 200-some sites we discuss in our

complaint.

THE COURT: Are all the sites within Jersey City or
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New Jersey?

MR. KANNER: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KANNER: And I said -- and what we said was,

well, maybe there's a way we could work out stipulations,

which defendant for which site, what the -- what the average

is -- might be of the contamination, which would save us

oodles of time, and a lot of the minutiae, we didn't really

need. People can work out stipulations, especially in

complex cases.

And we were told, no, we don't really want to go

down that road. Okay?

So right now -- I mean if -- if there are

solutions, you know, I'm all for -- I'm all for solutions.

But we need to be ready to tell the Court at the day of the

class certification how this case will try in light of

Hydrogen Peroxide. I just want to make sure I get enough

discovery that I can do that, and I don't have to listen to

defendants say, well, you haven't dealt with this, you

haven't dealt with this because I haven't seen it.

I also think if you're going to put some

limitations on this, Your Honor, there may be a difference

between questioning and the actual production. Like, for

example, in 30(b)(6) depositions, you often can use those to

get the lay of the land, what documents are where. I've had
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defendants say, oh, no, don't ask about anything else because

I think that's merits. Most courts say you can ask about

anything; whether you're going to get production right away

or not, we may revisit it at a certain point in time. That

way we --

THE COURT: Let me stop you for a -- let me just --

because I don't want to be talking about possibilities all

afternoon. But let me give you my view.

I'm never going -- in this case, I'm not going to

say -- I'm not going to formally bifurcate. I'm going to

informally limit it to class -- what's needed for class

discovery with the caveat that it should be broadly defined

and that if overlap makes sense, overlap is allowed. Number

one.

Number two, I'm not going to say you can -- you can

ask questions and you can't have documents. I'm not going to

have those kind of bright line tests; they don't work. I

need to have a concrete example.

And I approach discovery issues with common sense.

So if you're in the middle of a deposition and it seems

reasonable to ask some questions, I'm going to let you ask

them. I'm always going to have -- unless it is going to

substantially increase the burden and require a lot of

additional discovery that's not warranted at this time, I'm

going to err on the side of allowing it. And I want
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defendants to be aware of that, because I think that makes

sense -- and if I think it's become abusive -- because what I

think good-intentioned lawyers can't help themselves and

always want more information.

So we'll see how it goes is the best way I can

explain it to you.

There are good lawyers in this room who should try

to understand that this is not a simple slip-and-fall case,

where we can bifurcate liability and damages. It's very

complicated. And there's going to be natural overlap. And

to the extent that -- and I want defendants -- and I haven't

heard from defendants at all yet, and I'm certainly, you

know -- would love to hear from them, but if doc- -- because

there's other cases that there's documents there that can

easily be transferred to the plaintiffs without -- without

burden or expense, that should be accomplished, because

there's no reason no to, especially if they're willing to go

through them and limit them and use them. If, on the other

hand, you know, then you get a 30(b)(6) notice with 200

topics, I might say you have to slow down on those 200

topics, you don't need 200, you can do it in 10 or 20.

So we could talk about possibilities, but I think

it's more productive to have concrete examples with that sort

of common-sense approach and guidance about there will be

overlap, I won't bifurcate it, but, then, again, I'm not
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inviting full-blown merits discovery, and I'll put language

like that in the order that I ultimately enter. And I think

that that's what plain- -- defendants are not going to

object -- object to. There's no bright line here that I can

really draw.

MR. KANNER: Could I ask Your Honor --

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KANNER: -- for two things?

One, I have found in cases that are complicated

like this where you -- where you potentially have lots of

discovery, if the Court could set like maybe a monthly

conference, because --

THE COURT: Sure. I do that all the time. Welcome

to New Jersey.

(Laughter)

MR. KANNER: I grew up here. I've been here a lot.

I do a lot of work in New Jersey, Your Honor.

So, one, I think that would be helpful, because I

find parties tend to work out most of their disputes before

they have to face the judge.

THE COURT: That's why I have a jury room. Not for

the jury, it's for the lawyers.

(Laughter)

MR. KANNER: Okay. And secondly, I do think there

should be Rule 26 disclosures in this case. That's another
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point we disagree on.

THE COURT: Well, that would be a little bit

tricky, wouldn't it? I mean you could do it for class

certification purposes, I mean --

MR. KANNER: Well --

THE COURT: Look, here -- here's my view on

Rule 26. The critical thing about Rule 26 for me is the

names of folks with knowledge.

MR. KANNER: That's all I --

THE COURT: Because if you don't have -- and I'm

going to -- I'm not -- I will not waive that in any case

because invariably, if there's ever a trial, it's shocking at

the final pretrial conference how many witnesses pop up that

were never disclosed in discovery and then you get this

dispute about, well, they were mentioned in deposition.

If they're not named specifically as a person with

knowledge in an -- in a Rule 26 disclosure, they're not going

to be trial witnesses. So -- unless they were fully deposed.

But the rule says, it should be the name and the scope of the

knowledge.

And in this case, scope of the knowledge is

important; it's not just the name, because a witness could

have a lot of different knowledge, and you could call a

witness in a company about X and then they're going to

testify -- you could have deposed them on X and not know they
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had information about Y, and then at trial, there'll be a

fight over what were they -- what was the scope of their

testimony.

So I will not waive that rule. I don't know if I

need it with documents. Any documents that are produced in

response to document requests will be part of the case. It

might be redundant to have your lists and identify the names

of all documents, but you'd be hard-pressed to -- in to me

not to have the witness rule because it protects everyone at

the end of the day in a case like this. You don't want them

calling plaintiffs and folks that you never heard of, and

then -- now, that I've said it on the record, no one's going

to come back to me at a final pretrial -- I cannot tell you

how many final pretrials I have where there are more

witnesses who were never identified in discovery than were,

and it becomes very troublesome to then have to reopen

discovery and have last-minute depositions taking place.

MR. KANNER: That was my concern.

THE COURT: So that's always my concern. So I will

not waive that rule. If you want to agree on -- let's look

at Rule 26. Do you want to agree as to documents, you can

abide by whatever you disclose in discovery, and I know I

don't even have to say this in this case, all the documents

have to be Bates-stamped, so that we -- there's no documents

flying around that no one knows what they are or who -- what
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they're -- what they're addressed to. And they have to be --

unless you can agree to some kind of -- you have to have some

kind of logical system, not just -- not just here are a bunch

of documents from another case. I think it would be -- make

more sense to put some kind of numbering system on them.

So what we will do is -- the names, if known, the

addresses and telephone numbers of each individual that have

discoverable information along with the subjects of that

information that the disclosing party may use to support its

claims or defenses. Okay? So I'm not going to -- I'm going

to require everyone to do (a)(1)(A).

There's description and location of all documents,

I think we can coordinate that better with -- with document

re- -- responses to requests for production, provided that

everything is Bates-stamped in an organized way.

The computation of each category of damages, I

don't think that's practical in this case. I think you'll

have experts, and you'll talk about property damage versus

medical monitoring and personal injury.

And, again, insurance agreements, are there any

insurance agreements? Yeah, they probably want to see those.

So why don't we agree that Rule 26 will be limited

to (a)(1)(A)(i), little 1, and little 4. Okay?

MR. KANNER: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything defendants want to say?
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You don't have to say anything, actually. Don't feel

compelled.

MR. KATERBERG: Well, I'm not compelled,

Your Honor.

With regard to the disclosure of individuals, can

we at least, because this is a mammoth case and undertaking,

that we at least be able to get through the paper discovery

and then produce --

THE COURT: You could always supplement. I mean

you can -- you should -- the purpose -- you should do it as

soon as practicable. You know right now the people that

have -- have relevant knowledge, and you should get those

names out. And then you supplement it.

MR. KATERBERG: Okay.

THE COURT: And here's the rule. You're not going

to have any witnesses testify at any kind of hearing for

class certification if they weren't identified as whatever

day we set before that hearing as someone with relevant

knowledge. Neither will they. And before trial, then

you'll -- if the case gets certified as a class, we'll go

forward, and you'll have more names and more folks, and

you'll supplement it. Rule 26 says it should be constantly

supplemented. So take your best shot now and give -- and

identify those people that you know for sure from the top of

your head and then do it on a continuing basis. Make sure
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it's always in writing, and the "re" is always "supplement to

Rule 26" and keep those in a binder somewhere so we don't

have to look through a zillion documents at the conference to

find out if anyone was identified. Don't hide it under

something in a letter with other things. Make it a separate

letter, called "re: Rule 26 supplements." Okay?

Any other big-picture issues that we should discuss

before we gets to dates?

MR. GERMAN: Your Honor, Steven German. I just --

I put my hand up to make a point about 10 minutes ago.

THE COURT: You did. I saw you do that before and

then you sat down again. So I thought it was answered.

MR. GERMAN: I hope -- I hope my point is still all

taken.

I just really wanted to take one step back and --

and just remind us all what we're talking here, because we

were talking about, you know, whether information about

defendants' knowledge years ago is relevant at the class

certification stage and those types of details. And I think

it's just worth respectfully reminding the Court -- and I

know you read the proposal in detail, but, you know, the

plaintiffs are alleging that these companies --

THE COURT: Covered up.

MR. GERMAN: -- covered up and manipulated science

as to how much chromium was disposed, how potent that
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chromium is, how long they left it at these sites for without

telling people. There's -- there's a record in Judge

Cavanaugh's decision that deals with some of these issues in

the Honeywell decision, and those issues will ultimately tie

directly into class certification here.

THE COURT: In what way?

MR. GERMAN: In the sense that how much is there

may affect the distance that stuff traveled. How much was

left there pursuant to DEP orders which were based on their

science and how potent it is, may affect the potence when it

travels, how potent it is in that travel. All of those types

of issues --

THE COURT: Right. But let me stop you for a

minute. Everything from merits on some level impacts class

and vice ver- -- it -- they're just interconnected.

But there's -- there's a reasonable -- and this is

what I'm afraid of. We're not having full merits discovery.

I hear you, but of course everything is related to everything

about what they knew, when they knew it, how detailed, how

far the contamination spread. That may affect how -- you

know, the claimants when the lung cancer first developed,

et cetera.

But that's not the showing needed under Rule 23.

It's common questions of law and fact. It's typicality.

It's adequacy of class representation. I don't know how much
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you're going to need that kind of detail that you just said.

A lot of it's publicly available. You got it from Judge

Cavanaugh's cases. You'll get documents.

But I -- I don't think it's practical now to get

into the -- the merits of it. You're going to have an expert

that's going to talk -- your expert will talk about that.

You seem to have the information already. But whether you

need to get every single document from 1982 now to make a

class certification motion, I'm not sure.

MR. GERMAN: I fully agree, Your Honor. I just

didn't want us to go back, start meeting and conferring with

the defendants and there to be some misunderstanding that

we're wholesale not entitled to certain information. But

I -- I just wanted that to be clear before we left today.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, as I said and I'll say it

again, if we have to come back here once a month and talk

about what you're looking for and why you need it -- I'm not

bifurcating. I'm not going to strictly say class is here and

merits is here. That would be silly and unpracticable in a

case like this. I'm going to allow some overlap. And where

that line is drawn will really depend on how the issues are

presented to me by example. Certainly, some guidance is if

the documents have already been produced and are easily

accessible in other cases, they should not be held back

simply because they're not relevant to -- to the class. If
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they're all in boxes and they're all stamped and you can just

give them copies, you probably should, unless it's

overwhelming and there's a reason why you can't do it. That

doesn't mean you're going to be able to question every

witness on every document in the box. And you need to meet

and confer and try to -- have a formulation where your

experts are going on common issues of law and fact. And

really the fact issues, I don't know how much detail you

need; we'll take that on a case-by-case basis. I'm not going

to anything beyond that because it would not be fair to say

it unless they had an opportunity to explain why it would be

burdensome and irrelevant and you have an opportunity to say

you need it.

I will err on the side of Rule 26, which is

discovery is broad, even with class certification, as long as

it's moving at a reasonable, common-sense pace. So I think

that's what we need to say as to that.

Any other broad issues that we need to talk about,

because I think with those under way, we sort of have a -- a

general framework of how to set up a Rule 26 [sic] discovery

order.

I have one issue that scared me in the discovery

plan was the amount of interrogatories, because the more

interrogatories there are, there's more problems with

interrogatories, and that affects me.
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Yes, there were a lot of them.

MR. KATERBERG: I can just address.

THE COURT: Who's going to write all these

questions and answer them?

MR. KATERBERG: Well, the questions are already

written.

THE COURT: The multiple part scares me.

MR. KATERBERG: Your Honor, because of the size and

scope, we're actually dealing with two different classes

here. We have a medical monitoring class and a property

damage class, which are --

THE COURT: Right. But you want -- you want 50 for

each of them. They want -- everyone wants a lot of

interrogatories in this class, so -- in this room, so it's

not just you. You actually share that maybe little bit

different.

Let me ask you this question. Fifty multiple-part

interrogatories for class -- for the three class reps is a

lot.

MR. KATERBERG: The definition is only to take into

account where there are some that have multiple parts that

are all related, such as your -- you know, various medical

histories about smoking or about --

THE COURT: Let me stop you for one minute.

There's three plaintiffs. Right -- many more.
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Probably. Will there be more? Named plaintiffs? How many?

MR. KANNER: It's possible.

THE COURT: How many? Another two or three?

MR. KANNER: Possibly. I haven't thought about --

about it.

THE COURT: Okay. And you're going to take all

their depositions, right? Before the class certification.

You said that in your joint discovery plan. You want to take

all the depositions of all the named plaintiffs.

MR. KATERBERG: Correct.

THE COURT: So that's what I get back to. You're

going to take their depositions. You're going to ask them in

detail about their smoking history, their diet, all that

stuff. Do you -- and you're going to get all their medical

records in advance. You're going to have every single doctor

they saw. You're going to sit down and take an eight-hour

deposition of each plaintiff. Why do you need as to each of

those plaintiffs 50 multiple-part? It's going to be hard to

convince me. If you -- if you weren't taking their

depositions, I would understand it more, but you're taking

their depositions.

MR. KATERBERG: But many of them are not multiple

part. It's only when there are multiple part that are

related that --

THE COURT: I hear you, but let me tell you
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something, the federal rules say 25, and you're asking for 50

multiple-part of plaintiffs when you're going to take their

depositions. That seems like overkill to me.

MR. KATERBERG: Your Honor, these are going to be

joint sets. So if --

THE COURT: But you have the same -- there's really

not a lot of difference. In other words, I hear you. But it

seems like a huge -- 50 inter- -- so let me stop for you one

minute.

The three named plaintiffs, how many are property

damage and how many have medical damage?

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS: I believe it's two

medical and one property. I believe.

THE COURT: And the way you see the case, do most

people have both or one or the other? Just -- you know, I'm

not going to hold you to it. I'm just trying to get a sense.

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS: I think one -- I think

one has -- I thank two have --

THE COURT: Both?

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS: Two have both, I believe,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS: I need to take a look

back at the complaint.

MR. KATERBERG: Your Honor, if we played the
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numbers game in the rule, we could -- we could still do

this --

THE COURT: But -- it's not -- see, that's what you

just did. If we played the numbers game in the rule -- I'm

here to make sure there's no numbers game, because this is a

perfect example in my judgment of really just weigh- --

weighing down discovery, and then you have lawyers spending

hours answering interrogatories and they're fighting over

sufficiency when you're going to take their depositions

anyway. There are cases that I have -- it wouldn't be this

one -- where I just -- where I just don't even allow any

interrogatories, for instance, with pro ses. I say just go

take the deposition. You have Rule 26, you don't need any

depositions. I have cases where lawyers say to me, we only

need deposition -- we only need 10 interrogatories, we're

taking depositions. Fine.

I'm not inclined to allow you to have 50, and I'm

not inclined to allow multiple parts, because you're taking

depositions. And you -- from what I see in your joint

discovery plan, you want depositions of every named plaintiff

before you file class certification motions. If you're going

to take every named plaintiff, you don't need 50

multiple-part questions.

I'm going to limit you to 35; 35 single-part. You

can -- the defendants jointly on -- a joint set on each
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plaintiff on medical, and if there is -- if there is -- if

that plaintiff also has property damage, I'm going to limit

you to 25 on property damage. Because the plaintiffs aren't

going to have information about what was causing the

chromium. They're going to have information about what

happened to them. So you don't need to ask all those

detailed questions.

So if you have -- you can do a joint set, 35 for

each medical plaintiff, 25 for each property plaintiff. The

property plaintiff is all going to be, frankly, expert

reports. It's not going to be -- they're going to have no --

I'd love to see how you even come up with 25.

So that's what defendants together can serve on

plaintiffs.

Now, plaintiffs aren't defendants. What does

plaintiff suggest? Yours was a little different. They had

50, and then they had 50 on you. Could you live with -- how

many different defendants do we have?

MR. KANNER: Two.

THE COURT: Two defendants.

MR. KANNER: Yeah, I would just note that it

covers -- our complaint talks about a hundred years of

operation. I do agree with you on one of the things that you

said which is, you know, I find that you get a lot more

useful information in 30(b)(6) depositions where you get
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knowledgeable people on certain topics rather than having

lawyers, you know, who's got the most artful question, who's

got the most artful answer kind of thing.

We could live with 35 interrogatories as well.

We -- we just would ask --

THE COURT: Thirty-five jointly. I'm going to

limit you to 20 on each -- on each defendant.

MR. KANNER: Okay. And --

THE COURT: Single part. Unlimited interrogatory

requests [sic], okay? I mean -- I'm sorry, document

requests.

MR. KANNER: Could we do at least 25 on each?

Would that work?

MR. GERMAN: Your Honor, we're talking about there

are --

THE COURT: I'll let you have 25, but you're

taking -- guys, this is exact- -- we're talking about -- no.

I'm going to limit it to 20. I'll tell you why. This is all

about class certification discovery. We're going to have

more -- another set of interrogatories if the class is

certified. Let's limit it to 20, because this is exactly

what -- I told you my theory: Lawyers can't help it. They

want -- I -- I understand lawyers. They want as much

information as possible. But I'm trying to keep it moving so

that you can move this case and get it ready, and you're not
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going to get it ready if we have 50 multi-point -- we'll be

here 16 hours of torturous hearings over the sufficiency of

interrogatories. So I don't think that makes sense. So

that's how we'll limit. We'll do 20 each. Okay? And that's

how we're going to handle it. Everything is single-part.

So with that as background and I think those are

the big overarching issues, let's talk about the actual --

MR. KATERBERG: Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. KATERBERG: One point of clarification. If new

players do come in --

THE COURT: Oh absolutely.

MR. KATERBERG: -- your order will account for that

they'll answer them within 30 days?

THE COURT: Or whatever. You know, 30 -- within a

reasonable time of -- 30 days after service of the questions.

MR. KATERBERG: I just didn't want -- if they

seriatim are adding plaintiffs along the way, that we don't

have to keep serving them, that they will -- it's going to be

the same set.

THE COURT: Oh, you're going to have a standard

set? Well, of course, you can just write them a letter, and

he's not going -- they're not going to say no to new

plaintiffs, but there'll be a motion to amend, and we'll know

about it and we'll talk about it then, but certainly -- if
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they have a standard set, that's great. You can use it for

all the other plaintiffs.

Now, in these very fine discovery -- detailed

discovery -- how many hours did you spend on the discovery

plan? It was very impressive. A long time.

MR. KANNER: Not very effective.

THE COURT: It was good. I enjoyed it.

Okay. So we have Exhibit B is the defendants';

correct? So let's start with theirs. And I'm going to

move -- I'm going to do my own, but I just want to go through

the dates.

He- -- and so I probably -- issues that you've

raised.

I don't think we should file the motions for class

certification -- I don't know what -- go to Exhibit B and go

to paragraph 1. Okay? I don't think any motion should be

filed until they can be fully brief- -- until they can file

briefs and affidavits. I don't know what that means,

October 1.

MR. KATERBERG: Your Honor, if I may.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KATERBERG: Since discovery has to come off of

what their class claims are going to with and who are going

to be their class representatives, all we wanted was this

simple statement. The supporting briefs and affidavits --
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THE COURT: I hear you. But isn't that what an

amended complaint is? I mean -- in most class actions, they

have the obligation in the pleading to do that, to say who

their -- we can have a deadline for amendments to pleadings,

and then that amended pleading would set forth the class

allegations. I didn't look at the complaint, but I can't

imagine there's not class allegations in the complaint. So

I'm not going to require anything above and beyond that. The

rule doesn't require it. We can set a deadline for

amendments to -- to -- we'll talk about that in a minute.

But I'm not going to require that.

What about expert designations? Usually there's a

date for service of the expert reports; the affirmative ones

come first. Have you agreed or conferred about having

designations about people or experts or type of experts in

advance of the motions or in advance of service of reports?

MR. KANNER: We haven't discussed that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Is that something that you would like

to do?

MR. KATERBERG: Have a discussion?

THE COURT: Or -- have it. I mean, is that --

let's start at the beginning, okay, and let -- the beginning

is always Rule 20- -- we know we're going to have Rule 26

disclosures. And we know we're going to have interrogatories

now. So -- and it's going to be limited to class discovery,
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but I'm not bifurcating anything. It's going to be -- and

I -- I'm going to designate it that way so that we know that

if the class gets certified, we'll reopen and revisit what

additional discovery we need. Okay? And that's why I have

everything on the record today.

When can you on both sides -- begin at the

beginning. The beginning is Rule 26 and service of

interrogatories and document requests. When do you think you

can get those out? Can you get them out by August 1?

MR. KATERBERG: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. KANNER: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll put August 1 down.

Then we have amendments to pleadings. And, again,

amendments for pleadings as to class issues. When do you

think you're going to be adding new plaintiffs? When will

you know by? Because remember, everything's going to turn on

that. If you're going to bring in new plaintiffs, they're

going to want to serve more interrogatories, they're going to

take more depositions.

MR. KANNER: I understand that.

THE COURT: You tell me.

MR. KANNER: 90 days.

THE COURT: From today? October 1? October 1?

Does that work for anyone?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS: Yes, it does, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: You guys work on Saturdays; right?

Well, I would hate to ruin anyone's Halloween. No, that's

the end the month.

MR. KANNER: How about November -- November 1st?

MR. KATERBERG: Or September 30th, since it was

October 1.

THE COURT: You're the plaintiff, you should be in

a hurry. They're happy. They'll -- they'll say November 1,

that's fine. That's what you want? That -- they're --

they're thrilled. Because that's going to push everything

back more now.

I'm going to make it October 3rd, because I think

you should know by October who your other plaintiffs are,

independent of whatever you get in discovery from them. Have

a plaintiff, you think it's common, you add them.

So we're going to say October 3rd for amendments to

pleadings, because what dates have you talked about for class

discovery. And that's what we talked about, the documents,

the 30(b)(6), the named plaintiffs, all the discovery

disputes. You have June -- they have June 1 for discovery on

all class issues. What do you have?

MR. KANNER: Did you just say October 3rd for

adding plaintiffs and amending pleadings?

THE COURT: Isn't that the same thing?

MR. KANNER: Not necessarily, no. For example, in
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the course of discovery, they may say some other dude did it,

and we'd have to take discovery of that alleged dude.

THE COURT: Right. Well, you know -- you know what

that rule is; right? That means it's always -- there's

always amendments of pleading for good cause shown, under

Rule 16. So as, again, in New Jersey we always follow the

rules of civil procedure. 16 governs for good cause shown.

If you learn about a new guy, a new defendant a year from

now, you'd have a good argument that you should be able to

add that -- that person in.

In Rule 26 -- the date for amendment to pleadings

is for -- to bring in those claims you know about. So

anything before then, they can never argue prejudice or delay

or whatever, because that's the date that we all agreed to,

and that's the October 3rd date. And what I was thinking

about was new plaintiffs, if you have additional plaintiffs,

it's July, you should know in three months whether you're

going to bring in new plaintiffs. Doesn't mean you can't

bring in -- you can't try to bring one in after that, but if

you wanted to make October 15th, I will. But that gives you

a good three months to know. So we'll make October 15th --

oh, that's a Saturday again. We'll make it the 17th. Okay?

But of course, if you learn about someone new, you

could always bring them in. That goes without saying.

Okay. Now, hopefully you'll start having documents
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answered sometime in September and October.

You have a lot of depositions to take. The

defendants have suggested class discovery or discovery headed

towards the class certification, should be June 1. What did

you folks -- the plaintiffs, propose for class discovery?

Fact --

MR. KANNER: Well, we had -- we had a different

plan.

THE COURT: I know you did. I'm sorry about that.

MR. KANNER: No, no, it's fine. It's fine.

THE COURT: Okay. So that's why --

MR. KANNER: Those things happen.

THE COURT: I know it does. That's why you have to

kind of go with the flow --

MR. KANNER: Even in New Jersey.

THE COURT: -- on things with joint discovery

plans.

Can you live with June 1st?

MR. KANNER: How about June 30th? Would that work?

THE COURT: They're fine with that.

MR. KANNER: Just -- I just want to clarify one --

one thing just because of the way --

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KANNER: -- you've been saying requests for

production and interrogatories. You know, I can live with
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the fact that they actually get to ask more questions in

interrogatories of the plaintiffs than we get to ask of them.

I could probably get over that. But I certainly -- I need to

be able to ask 30(b)(6) depositions early on.

THE COURT: I didn't restrict that. I didn't

restrict that.

MR. KANNER: Okay, thank you.

THE COURT: But one thing that I say in every case.

You can take it early on, unlimited topics. But what I don't

want to happen is that you say, I want to take it -- I want

to take a 30(b)(6) on August 5th before you even get any

documents, and then after you get the documents, you want to

go and ask the same exact topics again, before you have the

documents. That doesn't work with me, because then that's --

that's ineffective. If you say I need a threshold quite -- I

don't think you should be taking Rule 26 -- Rule 30(b)(6)

depositions until you get some documents.

MR. KANNER: In -- in my experience, especially in

a case like this that covers many decades, there are going to

be a lot of documents. And I think that that's going to be a

problem getting through that. I think if you talk to the

knowledgeable person who's prepared --

THE COURT: Here's the problem. I'll tell you what

the problem is.

MR. KANNER: You can save a lot of time and effort
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on both sides.

THE COURT: You know, here's what you have --

here's what you save. You save -- you -- me, because here's

what's going to happen. If a 30(b)(6) witness has to become

prepared on a topic, they're necessarily going to have to

have doc- -- review documents. Unless they -- they're

wizards with photographic minds, they're not going to

remember what happened yesterday, never mind from 1985.

You're going to have all these topics. It's not a regular

fact witness that just testifies about what they remember

independent of documents. 30(b)(6) representatives have to

become educated, and then you're going to ask them what they

reviewed, and they need -- they're going to tell you about

all these documents that you haven't had yet in discovery,

and you're going to want to review them before you take the

30(b)(6) deposition.

So I -- if you want to do that, you can do it, but

you do it at your own risk, because then they're going to sit

down and say, yes, I sat with -- I reviewed a whole bunch of

documents, and then they're going to show you the documents

then. And then in -- three months later you want to take the

same witness on the same topic, I will say no, you had a

chance and that's what you're going to live with. Because

you are not going to turn this case into taking the same guy

two or three times before and after documents. That's all.
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So you do it at your own risk.

MR. KANNER: You know, I un- -- I understand that,

Your Honor. And, again, subject to good cause shown.

But I think that if you get a witness who's well

prepared for their 30(b)(6) early, plus you get their

personal files, their custodial files or whatever you call

them, I think you can accomplish a lot. And to the extent

that there are gaps, you know -- you either let them be. You

don't have to get everything.

But because --

THE COURT: But let me stop you right now. I don't

want -- there's no gaps. You took a 30(b)(6). They're to be

prepared.

MR. KANNER: Right.

THE COURT: And you're not going to call that same

witness back on a very closely related but separate topic

three months later after you get all the documents. That

doesn't work with me. That's really protracting litigation.

Then you say, I'm okay with what I got, because we remember,

this is only to make a class certification motion. I'm okay

with that. Maybe I take him at the -- I'll have to revisit

this sometime after we have full merits discovery.

But what I don't want to invite is I jump in and

take that 30(b)(6) deposition August 15th, and then I serve a

related notice on almost very similar topics after I get the
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documents to see if anything changes. That's not what --

that's not the purpose of a Rule 30(b)(6). It's to get

someone --

MR. KANNER: Yeah, and that --

THE COURT: -- educated. Get them done and you're

not revisiting it again. And I'll be -- I'm telling you this

right now on the record. I'm not inviting and I will not

hesitate to cut off a 30(b)(6) if one's taken real early on

and then you have a second one three months later on more

documents. It's not going to work. Do it at your own risk.

MR. KANNER: Your Honor, I understand that. I

think that's -- that's the rule pretty much everywhere.

What -- what -- all I was going to suggest is that

in a number of these environmental cases over the years, you

know, I've had defendants say, you know, here's two main

pages of documents. Then you finally -- and then you fight

about those because they're not all there and then there's

privilege logs and all that. And then nine months later, you

get to the 30(b)(6), and the person says, oh, well, this --

the information's right here instead of -- you know, going

through the haystack, very often the 30(b)(6) will help you

focus your discovery on what set or subset of documents --

THE COURT: Sometimes. Sometimes it's a disaster.

MR. KANNER: Right. No, I agree. But I'm just

saying that's -- that's where I'm coming from on all this.
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THE COURT: Okay. I didn't limit it. Okay.

So I'm going to put June -- for the end of fact

discovery for now, I'm going to put -- I'm going to keep it

at June 1st. If we have to extend it and there's reasonable

basis to extend it, I will, but I don't want this case to be

on a three-year discovery track, nor does Judge Wigenton, who

asks me all the time to report on her more complex cases, and

I think June 1's a reasonable deadline.

Now, in connection with that, the date for class

experts, what date did plaintiff have that -- plaintiff --

the defendants had a -- because your plan didn't work -- the

date they had inconsistent with gearing up towards a class

certification motion, that they -- that you produced your

experts by February 1. That sounds soon.

MR. KANNER: I would recommend the experts after

the completion of fact discovery, Your Honor. I think that's

pretty typical.

THE COURT: It is. But then I think their -- their

plan had it sooner than that. Can defendants live with

experts after that?

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: Your Honor, if I may, the

one thing that I think would be important to us is that the

expert discovery precede the filing of the class motions.

And that's because when you don't have that, what happens is

you get a pro forma class motion from the plaintiffs in our
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experience, and then the defendants suppose and for the first

time you found out for the plaintiffs' theory is in their

reply and then we come and we ask for a surreply.

THE COURT: Because of experts.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: Right. So the thing

that's most important to us is that expert discovery be

concluded before they file their class motion brief.

THE COURT: That's fine. That makes sense. Yeah,

it's fine.

All right. So I'll put you -- June 1. And I'll

put July 1 for affirmative expert reports. And --

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: July 1's a Sunday,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. July 2d.

MR. KANNER: Your Honor, I -- it's going to be very

hard to get expert reports on these sorts of matters turned

around that quickly --

THE COURT: You're right. So I'm going to move up

fact discovery to May 1. I can't possibly go to this -- in

this District and say I'm giving them over a year just to do

class certification discovery. It may turn out that way, but

in the first instance, you're right, I'm going to move up

fact discovery to May 1. This is going to have to be a

priority. The case is really old -- I mean the conduct is

old, and the plaintiffs, you know, according to the --
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your -- the complaint have been injured many years ago, and

we can't have this case linger in federal court for five

years. So why don't we move it up to May 1, and then we'll

put July 2d for affirmative experts. And then we'll put

September 6th for responsive experts. This is, again, for

class certification, not for merits.

MR. KANNER: On the class certification,

Your Honor, do you expect discovery to be completed on all

200 sites or just the sites related to the named class

representatives?

THE COURT: Well, that's a good question. I have

no idea.

MR. KATERBERG: That's a class issue, Your Honor.

They have filed on over a hundred various sites. And they

are all different. They're all in different parts of Jersey

City. They all might have had COPR brought to them. If --

if I may --

THE COURT: Right. Well, I guess the answer is you

want this -- this class to be certified on all hundred sites;

right? How many sites are there? A hundred or 200?

MR. KANNER: I think there's like 200.

MR. KATERBERG: There's a little over --

THE COURT: If you want the class to be on 200

sites and all the parties who have been affected by living in

close proximity to those 200 sites, the discovery has to be
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on all 200 sites.

MR. KANNER: Well, that's -- that's -- I think

that's the reason --

THE COURT: How else could you -- let me ask you

this way. There's no other practicable way to do it. You

can't limit discovery to the three sites that they're

affected by and then say, but I want to make a class

certification motion and have it certified on 200 sites.

MR. KANNER: You can show that it's illustrative of

the class without going through --

THE COURT: It's not working that way. It's going

to be on 200 sites. And this is about smart lawyering. You

have to recognize that this is going to be a class

certification motion. And I have to tell you -- and the

other New Jersey lawyers will vouch for you -- many of my

colleagues would be giving you six or seven months to do

this. I'm giving you a year to do class certification

discovery. Don't blow it. Work hard to get it done and be

smart. And that's when I -- what we were talking about all

afternoon, not trying to get every little bit of it. You

cannot possibly argue before Judge Wigenton to have a class

certified who are damaged at a hundred different --

different -- if it's all common -- and that's what the

discovery's going to focus on, how common was the dumping or

the disposal of the chromium, because that common issue is a
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fact that you have to talk about.

So it clearly is going to be everything related to

what you want the Court to certify the class as. It's not

going to be limited to be illustrative sites.

And I'm going to put for affirmative response- --

expert reports July 2d. Responsive reports September 6th.

We will -- these dates, you know, I'd -- I would almost bet

my pension that all these dates will not be met. That there

will be some adjustments. I never bet my pension against

anything, though, so I can't say that with certitude. But

there's always flexibility, and if you're working hard and

there's going to be privilege log issues or discovery

disputes, it's going to -- personal problems or issues in --

with lawyers and depositions and witnesses, there's always

going to be adjustments made. And I certainly understand

that going into a case like this.

So these will be the dates. I will draft the

order.

I think monthly status conferences are a good idea.

The first one will be in September because you're not going

to have the discovery out and answered until sometime in

September. And we'll talk at the end of September.

If there's more -- here's what I'm going to do in

this case, a couple of rules. I want -- in more complex

cases, what I do is I ask in advance of every conference a
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status letter, a joint status letter. I don't need joint

filings if there's discovery disputes. You can write your

letter, he writes his letter, and then we have a reply and a

hearing and do what we have to do. But just as to status, I

like to have a joint -- one joint letter by the parties. It

forces the parties to meet and confer and let me know whether

there's any problems, whether there -- if there's a small

discovery problem, you can put it in the letter. Plaintiffs'

position, defendants' position. If it's more of a complex

problem that needs further briefing, you can let me know and

we'll do that too.

What I don't like to happen in a case like this is

in advance of a monthly status call, the night before get a

30-page submission about privilege log and then the other

side blows a gasket and we haven't had a chance to respond to

it. I won't entertain those at the conference call. I'll

give you a date to respond.

And I ask you to use common sense and courtesy in

raising discovery disputes. In other words, if we have a

conference on September 22d, you know, don't give me a huge

brief -- if someone gives me brief and someone responds to it

on, you know, on the 18th and the hearing's on the 20th, give

me a little bit of time or just ask in the letter to adjourn

the date of the hearing, make it in person, so we can -- we

can have a more reasonable schedule to handle discovery
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disputes.

All discovery disputes should be in writing in

advance, other than the most very basic ones like, you know,

where's the deposition taking place; I don't need a brief on

that. I take very seriously your obligation under the local

rules to meet and confer and bring me legitimate questions on

scope and privilege, and I'll rule on them. I'm happy to

rule on them.

Everything that you file that has a discovery

dispute should be efiled with a courtesy copy to me, hard

copy to chambers. If it's something of a more emergent

nature, you can -- you can fax the letter to me.

And we will talk every month. My order -- my first

order will have in to send me that joint letter. And that's

how we'll proceed.

There'll be no dispositive motions until the end of

discovery, and we'll see what happens -- I'm not going to

even put in dates yet for the filing of those motions,

because I know that there'll be -- there'll be modifications

to the schedule. But there'll be motions for cert- -- for

class certification. If -- I don't know if this case it

would be -- it wasn't in the joint discovery plan, but if

defendants wanted to crossmove to dismiss any of the parties

or claims, we'll do that, and we'll coordinate it so Judge

Wigenton has one set of motion papers.
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Anything else you can think of?

MR. KATERBERG: Just one, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KATERBERG: Because of the Court's admonition

of wanting the lawyers to work smart and obviously we will

try to work together on the defense as much as possible. But

at the same time, I've heard plaintiff's counsel making these

arguments of conspiracy that they wouldn't mind something in

the Court's order that because the Court is encouraging

counsel to work together, any communications that were

between the defendants is not subject to any discovery.

THE COURT: Well, you have a joint defense

privilege, I take it; right?

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So put them on notice, if there's a

joint defense privilege. Right? I mean I've dealt with

joint defense -- the problem is sometimes lawyers will say,

there is no joint defense privilege, we're separate

defendants, and then they change through the course of the

litigation, and then the issue is when did it arise. If you

put them on notice now that you have a joint defense here and

I'm pretty up on those cases, is a joint defense is a joint

defense. And -- and it doesn't seem like that's going to be

an issue to me.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: Just one -- just one
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other issue.

THE COURT: Oh, one -- I'm sorry, before I forget.

Is there going to be a protective order in the case? I would

imagine your clients' medical records you would like.

MR. KANNER: Yes.

THE COURT: So you have a 5.3 is our local rule.

Take a look at it. There's a model order. You can designate

things attorneys' eyes only or for the purposes of this

litigation. I would suggest that you do that for all your

clients' medical information. I don't know what other

information needs to be so designated. Send it to me as

quickly as possible, and I'll sign it.

Yes?

MR. GERMAN: Your Honor, just in terms of smart

working together, after the April conference, which was --

which was adjourned, the plaintiffs requested that the

defendants provide four very basic categories of information

which will help streamline this process. One, which site

belongs to which of them? We don't -- we don't know that as

plaintiffs. And these are things that could easily go into a

four-column chart. What belongs to who. When the site was

created. When was the waste dumped there. The alternative

is we have to go through 200- --

THE COURT: Do we know?

MR. KANNER: Presumably they do. They've been
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working with the DEP on it for 30 years.

THE COURT: Here's the problem with that. Which

sites belongs to who is easy; right? Is it Honeywell --

what's the two defendants? Honey- --

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: No, that's not correct,

Your Honor, that is not correct.

THE COURT: It's not easy.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: No. There are -- there

are some sites we know belong to one or the other. And there

are a whole category of so-called "orphan sites." So

that's -- it's not correct.

THE COURT: Well, then that's easy, though. Then

you said you're not sure of what the ownership is; right?

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: Well, we could certainly

say that.

THE COURT: Right. The ones that you know for

sure, you can identify with certainty. And the ones that you

don't know, you can say it's unclear what the ownership. I

mean there has to be someone that has title to the property;

right? Present? Or no?

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: No, we have title to none

of the property.

THE COURT: None of the properties, but at the

time? I mean --

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: No, when you say --
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Your Honor, just let's clarify this. When he says whose site

is --

THE COURT: It's not easy.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: It's not --

THE COURT: It's not -- it's not who -- it's not

about ownership. It's about -- who had possess- -- who had

possession of it at a -- at a given point in time. Or who

had access to it, really.

MR. KANNER: Actually who dumped there. And --

THE COURT: Who dumped there. Or who had access to

it, not who owned it.

MR. GERMAN: Well, no, it's whose -- it's whose

waste is there. There are -- there were only two producers

in the City.

THE COURT: That's not what you said.

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS: I apologize for that.

THE COURT: I wrote down what you wrote [sic]. You

[sic] wrote which site belongs to them. Who -- that's --

that's qualitatively different than who dumped there. That's

a different question.

MR. GERMAN: That's -- so whose waste was deposited

at the site. And they've been working on this for decades

with the DEP. So this is certainly something they should

have information about that we certainly could not have

information about, if they don't.
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ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: That is not correct.

There are sites where we know that there has been testimony

otherwise that materials brought from one of the sites or --

and he's incorrect, there were three sites where chrome was

produced, and one was the -- site. And their material was

also brought into Jersey City, but for some reason they're

not in this case.

THE COURT: Right.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: The -- there are many

other sites where chrome just is -- was found. And there was

a -- there's an -- there are so-called orphan sites. And

we -- we may or may not have dealt with the DEP just to

cooperate to get some problems solved or deal with the

issues. But that's not an ownership issue. That's not an

allocation of responsibility issue. That's a very

complicated issue, Judge.

THE COURT: I know it is.

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS: So it's not as easy to

say, well, let's set four categories, let's work it all out.

That's a significant --

MR. KANNER: We'll -- discovery --

(Simultaneous conversation)

MR. KANNER: -- we'll get to the bottom of this.

THE COURT: Right. I hear you. But -- but in

response to your question, it isn't an easy issue in a case
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like this. Who -- whose -- you know, who dumped it and when.

We're talk- -- we're going back to what years? 1960s. And

there's not always good records. And there's not always

clarity of who was dumping what where and when. I've had

cases that the eve of trial where it was still unclear who

was dumping, when, where, and when -- who, what, where, and

when's were unclear at the eve of trial in Superfund cases.

So it's not always that simple.

You can ask in interrogatory, but I don't think

it's the kind of thing that you're going to get here's where

we dumped, here's when we dumped, it's very -- it's black and

white. There's a lot of gray area there. You're certainly

entitled to explore it in discovery because it goes to

commonality of -- of fact, and it's a legitimate question.

But that's why we have interrogatories. That's we have

30(b)(6) witnesses. And that's why you can request all the

DEP documents and see -- certainly all those documents should

be turned over with ease, if they're -- certainly as I've

said earlier, if they've already been turned over in other

cases and they're relevant here.

MR. GERMAN: Out -- so -- I understand, Your Honor.

There -- there are a couple of other categories. One they

should know is if they put a remedy at that site. If they've

put an interim cover on it or if they've excavated the

chromium or they've simply put a fence around it and they're
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calling that a remedy, we'd like to know in that chart the

date they did it, because each of them did it. It wasn't

the --

THE COURT: Well, you can ask that in

interrogatories. That's why we have discovery.

MR. GERMAN: The -- on the Rule 20(b)(6) [sic] --

THE COURT: 30(b)(6).

MR. GERMAN: Yeah, sorry. The Rule 26 disclosures,

to the extent both firms -- both defendants have used

third-party vendors, the environmental consultants who often

go out there, I think it's important that to the extent they

know who worked on what, that would be part of that

discovery. Not just the people inside the company, because

very often, you just go to the vendor third-party discovery,

and you can get the information more efficiently about a

particular site. You can also --

THE COURT: Guys, this is the kind of thing that

you need to talk about first, and you shouldn't be raising it

to me at a Rule 26 conference [sic].

You're right. That makes sense. If they've been

working with vendors for the past 20 years, that should be

disclosed. And if there's documents that can be easily

turned over to you about what remedies they've done to

remediate these sites, that should be turned over. That's

simple. That's not that complicated.
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But you need to talk about it first. And if you

can't agree on it, then you come back to me with detailed

letters that explain the problem and tell me -- I don't want

copies of all the letters you wrote to each other. I don't

like ad hominem attacks in letters. I don't read them. My

eyes skim over them. I want to get to the nub of the

problem. You're all good lawyers in this courtroom. It's a

scope issue. We don't think we should have to produce this.

We think we should have to produce this. Lay it out for me

in a letter. I'll read the other side. If I get the

impression that one side is being unreasonable, they'll know

how I feel very quickly. But lawyers attacking other lawyers

doesn't get -- doesn't get anyone very far here with me.

So that's how we're going to handle it.

The next conference I'm going to put as an

in-person conference on September 22d at 11 a.m., with the

caveat that if there's no overarching issues that I need to

address in person, I will convert it -- I'll be happy earlier

that week when you send me your joint status letter, you can

put in that joint status letter that we -- convert it to a

phone call, but we'll reserve it as a -- you know what?

There may be some Jewish holidays that week. I'm not sure

now that I think about it. But I don't have my calendar up.

Okay. You're right. September 29th. So we'll

keep it on for September 22d at 11 a.m. If you need to
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produce -- if you think you can convert it to phone, just in

that joint status letter indicate that it'll be converted by

phone.

And I will do the scheduling order consistent with

everything that I've said today. Okay?

Thank you, guys. Take care.

FEMALE SPEAKER: All rise.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS: Thank Your Honor.

(Conclusion of proceedings at 1:50 p.m.)
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Certification

I, SARA L. KERN, Transcriptionist, do hereby certify

that the 62 pages contained herein constitute a full, true,

and accurate transcript from the official electronic

recording of the proceedings had in the above-entitled

matter; that research was performed on the spelling of proper

names and utilizing the information provided, but that in

many cases the spellings were educated guesses; that the

transcript was prepared by me or under my direction and was

done to the best of my skill and ability.

I further certify that I am in no way related to any of

the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

outcome hereof.

S/ Sara L. Kern July 16, 2011

Signature of Approved Transcriber Date

Sara L. Kern, CET**D-338
King Transcription Services
65 Willowbrook Boulevard
Wayne, NJ 07470
(973) 237-6080
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 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

LATREICA SMITH, MATTIE HALLEY, 
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Plaintiffs,

vs.

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC. 
and PPG INDUSTRIES, INC.

Defendants.

:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:

Case No. 2:10-cv-03345-ES-JAD

 Newark, New Jersey
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 10:37 a.m.
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(Conference commenced at 10:37 a.m.)

THE COURT:  Okay.  This is Latreica Smith and Mattie

Halley against -- versus Honeywell International, Inc. and PPG

Industries, Docket Number 10-33451.  May I have appearances of

counsel, please?

MR. GERMAN:  Steven German, German Rubenstein, LLP, 

on behalf of the plaintiffs.  Good morning, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Good morning. 

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Joel

Rubenstein, German Rubenstein, on behalf of the plaintiffs. 

THE COURT:  Good morning.

MS. BARRON:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Leah Barron,

Janet, Jenner and Suggs, on behalf of plaintiffs. 

THE COURT:  Good morning. 

MS. DAVIS:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Anne Davis,

Arnold and Porter, on behalf of Honeywell International, Inc.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. McDONALD:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Michael

McDonald from Gibbons, PC, on behalf of Honeywell.

THE COURT:  Good morning.

MS. WALKER:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Karol Corbin

Walker with LeClairRyan on behalf of defendant PPG Industries,

Inc.

THE COURT:  Good morning.

MS. WALKER:  Good morning.  
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MR. COUGHLIN:  Tim Coughlin, Thompson Hine out 

of Cleveland, for PPG Industries, Inc.

THE COURT:  Good morning. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  Good morning, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  All right.  I wanted to talk this morning

about the motion for leave to amend and I also just wanted to

talk about status and where we’re at, in terms of discovery 

and things like that.

I have a fundamental question on the motion for -- on

your motion to amend the complaint.  Why are you amending it

now to drop plaintiffs, add plaintiffs, and change I guess the

potential class?  I think that’s what the second part is;

correct? 

MR. GERMAN:  Sure, Your Honor.  If I may, I think

there’s a map that we submitted as Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 5 to 

our reply brief that really speaks volumes and can answer that

question.

THE COURT:  Well, no.  Here’s -- I don’t think I

properly asked the question.  This is not your fault for not

answering what I asked, because I don’t think I asked really

what I want to ask.  I understand what you’re trying to

achieve, but why is that coming now? 

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, the reason that’s coming now

is because we learned new information through discovery from

the time of in between the time of the last amendment and the
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time that Judge Mannion offered us to amend the complaint.  

And that information became critical in the way we, as

attorneys, our technical consultants and experts, thought 

about this case, learned about the areas where there was

community concern about the case, the most serious community

concern, the most serious impacts of the chromium.  

We recognized through that also that the case, as it

was framed, was a little bit unwieldy -- there were a lot of

sites involved, and there was a lot of conflict arising over

proving whose waste, when, where, where it went around the 

city -- and by focusing the complaint them way it’s focused

now, we could jettison a lot of those issues to focus on the

areas that we learned about through discovery, discovery that

we had been seeking for two years and that wasn’t produced, --

THE COURT:  What discovery exactly did -- was 

produced at the time that -- let’s -- let me -- let’s set a

couple more fundamental facts.  Technically, you were I think

about eight days late in filing the motion; right?  Am I 

wrong?  Am I reading the dates wrong as to what Judge Mannion 

-- Judge Mannion said -- and maybe I’m wrong.  Hold on. 

Where’s the -- what day did you file your --

MR. GERMAN:  I don’t -- I believe we were on time,

Your Honor.  I don’t think there’s any dispute that the -- we

followed the precise protocol and orders articulated by Judge

Mannion.  We exchanged a draft of the complaint, a redline
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copy, we discussed it with the defendants, and we timely

submitted the brief with the attached proposed amendment.

THE COURT:  So, you filed this motion before June

21st?  That’s what I’m asking.

MR. GERMAN:  The ECF stamp has it on June 28th.  I

don’t -- I believe there was an extension on it, if I remember

correctly.

THE COURT:  Well, let me be clear.  I’m not going to

nail you on being eight days late, but I just want to know

whether you were eight days late or not.

MR. GERMAN:  I don’t believe we were.

THE COURT:  Do you -- anybody remember granting or

Judge Mannion granting an extension for the eight days?

MR. McDONALD:  Your Honor, --

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, we -- Judge Mannion granted

an extension, because we were conferring with the defendants --

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. GERMAN:  -- over the complaint.  So, we were

perfectly within time.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So, that’s one thing I don’t have

to consider, although I understand you’re reserving your 

rights to argue that it was still untimely because of what had

happened before that.

MS. DAVIS:  Yeah, and I would just add, I think it a

little bit obscures the record to say that Judge Mannion
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granted leave.  I mean, this was all contingent upon our 

having the ability to object to it as untimely, because it 

was, in fact, --

THE COURT:  No, I --

MS. DAVIS:  -- two years late.

THE COURT:  And I got that.

MS. DAVIS:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  Where I’m going with this, Mr. German, is

I I tend to agree, based on the record in front of me, that

it’s a Rule 16 standard, not a Rule 15 liberality of the

pleadings standard.  So, that implicates good cause and, as 

you -- I think you recognize and the defendants recognize. 

Then, what is the good cause for changing this?  And I’m --

it’s -- I’m going to sound like I’m being judgmental, if I can

use that term -- changing the class again?

I’m not so concerned about the plaintiffs.  I’m

guessing there’s probably a real rational explanation for why

you need to drop a plaintiff and add a plaintiff.  I presume --

and you can correct me if I’m wrong.  I presume it has to do

with property ownership.

MR. GERMAN:  It doesn’t, Your Honor.  It has to deal

with the presence of the waste, where it is, and the impact on

the surrounding community.  And this one --

THE COURT:  You need class -- you need named

plaintiffs who at least owned property within the class you
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seek to certify.

MR. GERMAN:  That’s correct.  That’s correct.  And,

Your Honor, I understand where you’re headed with respect to

the Rule 15(a)/Rule 16(b) dichotomy here.  I just want --

THE COURT:  Because I kind of interrupted myself. 

What new discovery did you --

MR. GERMAN:  Sure.  So, that new discovery is

extensive.  What we had at the outset of this case before the

amendment was basically technical reports about various sites

throughout the city that where waste was.  We did indeed have

that.  But what we didn’t have was this extensive and

voluminous record about where the community was expressing

greatest concern.  The fact that the DEP, the New Jersey

Department of Environmental Protection, was telling people 

near these sites keep your windows closed, don’t run your air

conditioners.  We didn’t have question --

THE COURT:  Why didn’t you have that DEP inform --

what you just said; why didn’t you have that information?  

When did that start?

MR. GERMAN:  Because it was all in records that were

subpoenaed from the independent site administrator for the PPG

sites.  And PPG moved to block that subpoena.  Without

standing, PPG moved to block that subpoena and we waited well

over a year, maybe close to 14, 15 months to get those

documents.  We didn’t --
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THE COURT:  When did you get the documents?  You can

give me a rough estimate.  Or a good estimate.  You know, I

don’t need --

MR. GERMAN:  We got them --

THE COURT:  -- to know the exact date.

MR. GERMAN:  We got them maybe, on a rolling basis,

just a couple of months before the amendment.  The proposed

amendment.  

THE COURT:  So, sometime --

MR. GERMAN:  And to be clear, --

THE COURT:  Sometime in the spring of 2013?

MR. GERMAN:  That’s correct.  That’s --

THE COURT:  Does anybody dispute that’s when the EPA

documents began to be served?

MR. GERMAN:  Okay.  And, Judge, the volume of these

materials was extensive.  It took an inordinate amount of time

for them to be produced.  PPG is regularly involved in the

process and the plaintiffs aren’t.  So, there’s this built in

bias in our ability to wade through these materials in a way

PPG couldn’t, and we moved expeditiously in getting through

those materials, noticing up depositions.  

There’s an extensive history in the record here about

our inability to access these materials, confidentiality 

orders about it, cost-shifting battles about these materials;

all which were held up and precluded us from moving forward
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with this information.  

And what we discovered through the materials is that 

-- and let me take a step back, Judge.  Just for some

perspective on how serious this issue is.

There’s a residential inspection program that goes on

in Jersey City where an independent site administrator goes

into people’s homes near the PPG sites and looks for chromium. 

People are having blood drawn to detect if they’re being

exposed to chromium.  There --

THE COURT:  How long has that been going on?  I read

that in your papers.

MR. GERMAN:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  How long has that been going on?

MR. GERMAN:  That’s -- that program has been going on

for a couple years.  And we didn’t have access to that

information.  There’s a Web -- a public Web site that’s put

out, which is essentially run by PPG’s public relations staff. 

But the information underlying everything that’s put

out to the public is all contained in these records.  There’s

extensive studies, ongoing studies, environmental studies that

are in these records.  There’s correspondence back and forth

with the Department of Environmental Protection about air

monitoring, about how much of this stuff is getting up in the

air, about how much is there.  We just got it a couple of

months before the amendment.
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And that’s only -- that’s only non-party subpoenas. 

We -- we’re not even done getting the documents yet from PPG

and Honeywell.  I mean, there are still -- I mean, we may have

recently gotten the final documents, but they’ve trickled in

maybe over the past, what?  

(Discussion among counsel, off the record.)

MR. GERMAN:  We’re still waiting on documents.  

So, this is not a simple case.  It involves a lot of

material.  And for plaintiffs to be, you know, to be put to

task and to appreciate what’s gone on in each of these sites 

on this map, on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 5, when the defendants

themselves have been studying this through the years, and we

haven’t had access to that information, when we haven’t been

given a single deposition on it yet, we did our best with the

information as it came in.  We promptly came to the Court, we

proceeded with diligence; which is the standard.

If this Court is going to adopt Rule 16, which the

plaintiffs respectfully disagree with, the standard in the

Third Circuit remains a strong liberality in granting

amendments and there’s a general presumption.  And we believe

that, if the Court were to turn to Rule 16, based on the prior

amended order, it would have to accept the fact that that 

order from Judge Arleo from three years ago governs the case

and that the amendment somehow causes delays in that order. 

But it doesn’t, because that order had been modified
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subsequently for reasons totally unrelated to this proposed

amendment.  We would have had delays in the schedule, whether

or not plaintiffs moved to amend that complaint or not.  And

that’s because we haven’t gotten the discovery that we’ve

requested.  We’re still bickering over it.  So, --

THE COURT:  I don’t disagree with everything you’re

saying about what the standard is.  And I -- and we all know

that there are very few motions to amend that get denied.  

They do get denied, though.

When I first read these papers, my major question is

why is this changing again.  And I -- and that’s why I wanted

to have -- I am probably going to reserve today, because I 

want to consider exactly what’s going on here.  I think we’re

very close, if not -- I’ve kind of said I think we’re -- it’s 

a Rule 16 standard, based on what’s happened.  

On the other hand, that’s why I’m asking you.  What

have you found out now that wants -- makes you want to change

what the -- I guess the geographical areas are that are under

consideration?  Because I would have presumed that this type 

of a issue, which I think everybody kind of knows it’s out

there in Jersey City, we would have known where the -- where 

it went.

MR. GERMAN:  Judge, the -- some of the specific

examples of an -- first of all, it is absolutely not true that

people would know where it went.  I have to respectfully

Case 2:10-cv-03345-ES-JAD   Document 456-3   Filed 09/13/17   Page 14 of 46 PageID: 10811



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

German - Argument 14

disagree with that.

THE COURT:  I guess I’m trying to figure out whether

you are trying to make the class an appropriate class or

whether you are trying to make it the best class.  

MR. GERMAN:  Where -- what --

THE COURT:  Do you understand that -- all that I’m

saying?

MR. GERMAN:  Sure.  Sure.  So, let me answer two

questions.  What are some examples of things we’ve obtained? 

We’ve obtained internal studies that Honeywell did that

demonstrate that chromium blowing off of these sites migrates

into these class areas.

THE COURT:  As opposed to the former class areas that

you named?

MR. GERMAN:  Well, that’s right. 

THE COURT:  Or in addition.

MR. GERMAN:  We -- we --

THE COURT:  Or is it in addition to?

MR. GERMAN:  It’s -- it definitely -- I mean, they

talk about the direction that the waste is migrating; towards

the south and southeast.  If you look at the class areas --

THE COURT:  And you didn’t know that before?

MR. GERMAN:  That’s correct. 

THE COURT:  And when did you learn that?

MR. GERMAN:  We learned that in recently-produced
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documents.  I could not stand here and tell you which of the 

14 or 15 productions involving several million documents that

that was in.

THE COURT:  But at least as late as the spring of

2013?  

MR. GERMAN:  I -- that --

THE COURT:  Is that what you’re going to -- 

MR. GERMAN:  I -- I -- I --

THE COURT:  I need you to tell me yes or no to that.

MR. GERMAN:  I -- that’s my belief.  I mean, Your

Honor, there’s a practical element here of us getting through

the material.

THE COURT:  And I understand that, too.

MR. GERMAN:  But that’s when we learned of it.  It 

was very recently that we learned of it.  It may have been in

one of these voluminous productions, --

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. GERMAN:  -- but when we got to it was around this

time.  

We had no access, none whatsoever, to the results of

the residential inspection program.

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. GERMAN:  We had no access to the questionnaires

that -- the results of the questionnaires that PPG’s public

relations staff and the independent site administrator had in
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its files that we subpoenaed and didn’t get access to for over

a year.  There are maps, there’s environmental data, there’s

information about the chemical composition of the waste.  

There is -- there is so much information that we did not have

access to before this that we now have.

It is true, Your Honor, it is true that we had a lot

of information, but --

THE COURT:  But the inform -- I’m not -- I don’t want

to be too dense about this.  All I’m make -- what I’m putting

you to the task, in your words, is to tell me what information

you got recently -- and by recently, I’d say in the spring of

2013 -- that persuaded you that you need to change the

geographical area again to follow the facts, if you will?

MR. GERMAN:  It was the -- it was our ability to --

THE COURT:  Your diligence, in other words. 

MR. GERMAN:  It was what?  Our what?

THE COURT:  Your -- in other words, I’m -- I want you

to talk to me about your diligence --

MR. GERMAN:  I -- I -- and --

THE COURT:  -- in getting the information.

MR. GERMAN:  Well, our diligence in getting the

information was, A, issuing the re -- in the first instance,

was issuing a request, sending out the subpoenas trying to get

the information.  And that didn’t flow immediately.  In fact,

it took a very long time.  We’re still waiting on information
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for over 15, 16 months that would -- that could ultimately

affect the final precise boundaries of this class.

THE COURT:  So, that was actually almost my next

question.  Is it conceivable that there will be a fifth motion

to amend the complaint?

MR. GERMAN:  We don’t anticipate that.  We do

anticipate the possibility after the expert work is completed,

as in all -- virtually all environmental class actions, and

most class actions, that there may be some honing and

recontouring of the class based on the geographic location of

the waste.  I mean, there’s going to be air expert modeling

that may be done in this case that tells us the precise

boundaries.  It -- they may move it a little bit.  But based 

on the information that we learned leading up to this

amendment, we think this is the appropriate area.

And you asked if we’re looking to craft the best 

class or an appropriate class.  And the answer is --

THE COURT:  Of course, the definition of best is

important, but that’s --

MR. GERMAN:  The answer is that we have an obligation

to move forward with a class that we believe that we can

certify, that meets our Rule 11 obligations to litigate, and

that is not a waste of this Court’s or the parties’ time in

litigating.  And in that respect, the best class is the

appropriate class, because in our belief, based on our 
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analysis of the facts, these are the areas where there is the

most serious concern in the city, it -- they are the areas

where we’re going to have the least fighting with the

defendants about whose waste it is.

If I may remind Your Honor, as we’ve set forth in the

briefs, we’re focused on the areas now where the defendants

manufactured their waste and disposed of it on contiguous

adjacent parcels of land.  All of these other sites on the map

are areas where waste was trucked off and the defendants say,

we have no idea whose waste it is, how it got there, and we’re

going to --

THE COURT:  Do you have a copy of the map with you?

MR. GERMAN:  Sure, Your Honor.  If I may?

THE COURT:  You have it; right?  You have the map?

MS. DAVIS:  Not the one that he is --

MR. GERMAN:  It’s Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 1 of the motion

to amend and Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 5 of the reply brief.

If you look at Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 5, Your Honor,

we’ve narrowed this case down from sites all across the city 

to those areas where we know the defendants’ waste was

manufactured and the adjacent lands where it was disposed. 

These are the areas where we have testimony that has recently

been developed that people have expressed very serious concern

about the presence of this waste in the community.  They have

expressed concern about the health of their neighbors, their
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property, their property values, their families.  And we could

set aside and hone in on the areas of most serious concern in

the city.  

And these are also the areas where the scientific

evidence is beginning to develop and will come out in expert

testimony that this is physically where the waste is and these

are where the dust -- these are where the residential

inspection program took place, these are the -- the 

information we obtained recently, the -- from the site

administrator and other resources that were produced, these 

are the areas where we believe the appropriate and the 

correct, Your Honor, to use that word, correct classes are. 

And we see great efficiencies in litigating this class as

opposed to the other classes.

THE COURT:  All right.  I have another question, but 

I think it might -- the defendants may -- is Ms. Davis -- who

is going to be arguing; Ms. Davis? 

MS. DAVIS:  I think we may both want a turn, but it

may make sense for Mr. Coughlin speak first, because --

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. DAVIS:  -- he can speak to the site administrator

and the -- 

MR. COUGHLIN:  Good morning, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Good morning.

MR. COUGHLIN:  As you indicated, this isn’t a new
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problem.  As you said, everybody knows about this issue.  It’s

been around in the regulatory realm since the ‘80s.  There was

no secret as to the site itself; it’s been sitting there -- 

you know, the production stopped in ‘63, sold in ‘64 and

demolished -- and for more than a decade it’s been sitting

there with a fence around it.  And so, to hear now that it was

in the spring of 2013 that these things suddenly sprung to

life, it’s a little disingenuous.  

The -- PPG entered into a settlement with the

regulatory agencies in 2009; matter of public record, a lot of

press about it.  That settlement in part defined a large -- 

and I’m speaking to class area B, which is, in part, around 

the -- and, Your Honor, here is -- there were two maps that we

have provided and these, in part, demonstrate why this is not

just an issue of timing, but why it’s class.  Why are they

talking about this class now? 

Because, as we pointed out -- let me finish the

history first.  In 2009, with the settlement, there’s a thing

called a Residential Inspection Program that Mr. German talked

about.  There is a boundary for that settlement in large part

in this 2009 settlement.  It’s maps on -- it’s lines on

streets.  He picked that up as part of the current definition. 

That’s been there since 2009.  

The results of that Residential Inspection Program 

are a matter of public record.  They are in the newsletters
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that go out to the thousands of people in this community. 

They’re on the Web site.  They’re available.  There has been

public hearing after public hearing by the site administrator. 

Mr. German attends those, and so he knows everything that’s

been going on since those started in late 2009.  

The blood sampling program.  Thousands of

notifications went out about that program, 40 -- only 42 

people signed up.  But thousands were invited, 42 showed up. 

The results of that program; again, published on the Web site,

published in the newsletter.  All a matter of wide

dissemination.  This isn’t about a lightbulb went off in the

spring of 2013.  

We hear this constant refrain now, it’s -- Mr. German

said it repeatedly, this is the area of most serious concern. 

Well, to me that sounds like a predominance question actually

for Rule 23, but that issue, this concern has been voiced at

these public meetings by individuals who rose to speak;

meetings that Mr. German and Mr. Rubenstein have been at since

the beginning.  So, again, this isn’t an issue of timing.

Yes, there have been a million pages plus produced by

my client, and I know the same amount by Honeywell, but they

were produced because the plaintiffs insisted we have 

100-and-some sites, you’re going to produce documents on every

single site.  We went back and forth about that, but that’s 

why there’s a million documents.  
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THE COURT:  And when were they -- are they -- and,

now, is it a rolling production?

MR. COUGHLIN:  It has been a rolling production.  We

have produced -- because this has been going on for so long,

there was a tremendous amount of historical information.

THE COURT:  When did you begin production?

MR. COUGHLIN:  After everything was worked out, I

believe it was in the summer of last year, I believe.  

THE COURT:  These were the motions in front of Judge

Mannion? 

MR. COUGHLIN:  The motion to compel by plaintiffs is

resolved.

THE COURT:  I know.

MR. COUGHLIN:  But the --

THE COURT:  But it -- was that part of the motion?

MR. COUGHLIN:  That was part of it.  This issue about

subpoenaing the site administrator’s records?  The site

administrator objected, because there is highly confidential

information in there about individuals who participated in a

blood study, and so you have HIPAA concerns.

THE COURT:  These are the 42 people?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Yes.  You also have -- at some point,

there was much discussion about the confidentiality of the

people that participated in the residential sampling program. 

And but, yes, those were worked out, --
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THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  -- documents were produced, but it’s

not as though the program itself suddenly sprung to life.

THE COURT:  No, I understand.  So, I guess what I’m

getting at, a picture of this from both sides, is that there

was a lot of public information from which you say they could

have ascertained the site that they are now -- or the sites or

the geographical locations that they are now seeking to use as

a class; correct?  

MR. COUGHLIN:  This boundary, again, --

THE COURT:  Which map are you holding up?

MR. COUGHLIN:  This is Exhibit 2 to the PPG’s

response.

THE COURT:  Okay.  This boundary --

MR. COUGHLIN:  That is 90-plus percent the boundary 

of the JCO, the judicial consent order entered in 2009.  And

so, there’s -- they have a bolt-on area over here on the -- I

guess that would be northeast of the map in the dark blue.

THE COURT:  Right.

MR. COUGHLIN:  And so, our issue is, yes, they’ve 

gone from -- they’ve winnowed the class down, in terms of site

numbers, but it’s not site numbers that matter; it’s the

people, it’s the plaintiffs -- or putative plaintiffs, the

putative class members.  That’s the issue.  

And so we’ve gone from geographic quarter mile
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definitions, which Mr. German’s map represents, where he 

pretty much covered 80 percent of Jersey City.  Then we went

down to a 300 foot out of the ATSDR --

THE COURT:  Right.

MR. COUGHLIN:  -- and the interesting part about that

is that was based upon apparent modeling that the New Jersey

DEP or EOHSI did with regards to potential spread.  

And we have -- we gave you, Your Honor, that Exhibit 2

represents 300 feet from the various sites that now find

themselves as part of class B.  So, the blue represents areas

that would be unaffected.  

You look perplexed.

THE COURT:  I’m just trying to make sure I understand

the distinctions between the various areas.

MR. COUGHLIN:  If you look at --

THE COURT:  How is your Exhibit 2 different from what

their --

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, could I just --

THE COURT:  If -- if -- 

MR. GERMAN:  Could I just say something about the 300

foot boundary?  It’s simply wrong.  That’s not what the 

amended complaint said.  

MR. COUGHLIN:  Well, I --

MR. GERMAN:  The amended complaint --

THE COURT:  What -- wait.  The old amended complaint?
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MR. GERMAN:  Yeah, the --

THE COURT:  I don’t even want to argue about it.

MR. GERMAN:  Okay.  So, --

THE COURT:  If you disagree, that’s okay.

MR. COUGHLIN:  But what we’re talking about are --

we’ve gone from these circumferential dif -- geographic areas

to now lines on streets.

THE COURT:  I want to make sure everybody understands

that -- and I know you understand this.  I want to make sure

you understand that I understand this.  We are not doing a

motion for class certification today.

MR. COUGHLIN:  I -- and I understand, but our -- my

point is, why this class?  Why this definition?  Because -- 

and then, once you read it, --

THE COURT:  Well, there are two questions I would

have.  Number one, does it make any sense at all?  

MR. COUGHLIN:  No.  Be --

THE COURT:  Well, why doesn’t it make any sense at

all?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Two reasons.  The definition as -- or,

you know they throw this perimeter out there.  It doesn’t make

sense based upon the factual record that’s been developed. 

It’s -- again, it’s just lines on streets.  It -- and I know

Ms. Davis has even more concerns about it.  The geographic or

lines on streets that plaintiffs have drawn with regard to
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class B is -- again, is merely a negotiated settlement in the

JCO between a governmental organization and PPG that bears no

relationship to the conduct of PPG.  

THE COURT:  Well, --

MR. COUGHLIN:  And then, the actual class definition. 

If you read the class definitions themselves, I have no idea

what they mean.  With respect to property owned in 2008, for

those people who own property in 2008, I have no idea what 

that means.  Nor do I understand why --

THE COURT:  What part?

MR. COUGHLIN:  If you go to what the actual class

definition is, and class -- 

THE COURT:  What are you reading from?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Their complaint, which is paragraph 64.

THE COURT:  Hold on.  Let me find the -- the proposed

complaint?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. COUGHLIN:  And, again, I’ll stick with Class B. 

“With respect to property owned as of September 30 2008, all

persons who, as of September 30, 2008, owned any real property

not zoned for industrial use exclusively.”  I don’t even know

what that means.  And so, in terms of being problematic, it --

this complaint presents any number of them.  

Why -- as you have said, Your Honor, why this class? 
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Why this area?  You -- when you --

THE COURT:  Well, I say that in the context of what’s

going to happen six months from now.  And in the context of 

why didn’t we have this area before.  Plaintiffs’ counsel has

explained to me why they haven’t had this area before.  You

disagree with that explanation; I understand that and I’ll 

hear that.  And then the other part of it is, I don’t want to

do this again if we could possibly in any way avoid it.

MR. COUGHLIN:  So, we’ve had this long history of

amendments that have been drug along, --

THE COURT:  And I understand that.  That’s what 

causes me -- that’s what gives me some concern.

MR. COUGHLIN:  And now, under this one, with no

explanation whatsoever -- and as Your Honor is looking at a

Rule 16 standard -- no explanation whatsoever as to why we go

from 2010, the filing date of this litigation, now we’re sort

of backtracking to 2008.  And so it’s a totally different

definition of property ownership.  Forget about the geographic

area.  So, now there are people that were in the class under

the prior definitions that are now out of the class.  With no

explanation whatsoever in the comments --

THE COURT:  Well, the explanation was given today.

MR. COUGHLIN:  That explanation did not even touch on

why 2008 versus 2010.  Because -- and we raised this in our

brief about, you had people that --
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THE COURT:  But here -- you know what?  We’re going

down the road of those that I do want to avoid.  Or not avoid,

but I want to make sure you -- I think your arguments are

better suited when you are going to oppose the motion for 

class certification. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  I don’t --

THE COURT:  And they may be really very strong and

powerful arguments.  Okay?  Based on what I’ve read, but I

won’t be deciding that motion unless something really horrible

happens.

MR. COUGHLIN:  But if --

THE COURT:  Worse than sequester.

MR. COUGHLIN:  But if Mr. German is arguing to the

Court that this is the best, this is the best definition --

THE COURT:  Well, all -- well, you’re --

MR. COUGHLIN:  -- they can come up with, --

THE COURT:  You’re taking today as an opportunity to

tell him that you’re going to really make it hard for motion

for class certification.  

I am more concerned with, has there been a lack of

diligence?  I’ve given him an opportunity to talk about that. 

Has there been newly-discovered evidence?  I know that -- I

think it’s in your brief where you say only two depositions

have happened after he drafted the complaint and I’m going to

hear from you on that.  But those are the issues for his
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ability to -- and we haven’t gotten to one other issue, and

that is prejudice and what’s going to happen if I grant this

motion, in terms of discovery and costs and things like that. 

Okay?  

So, certainly -- I get your arguments.  I actually --

I get it, but I don’t think they rule the day on motion to

amend.

MR. COUGHLIN:  Only with regard to the good cause

standard, Your Honor.  When there’s no explanation whatsoever

as to why plaintiffs are now kicking people out of the class. 

Even in this geographic area, Your Honor, under their prior

definition there were people in this area that were in the

class that sold their property in 2009 and 2010 that he’s

booted out of the class.

THE COURT:  And I don’t know if you’re arguing what I

think you may be arguing, but I would understand why you might

be concerned that there might be another class sitting out

there.

MR. COUGHLIN:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So, I think that actually might be

resolved in a different way. And we can talk about that at the

end of the day, in terms of maybe -- I don’t know if it’s

possible -- but maybe we can sit down and talk about and maybe

negotiate -- not without waiving any rights to -- about

certifying the class, but maybe we can negotiate something
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about we ought to be fighting over in the future.

MR. COUGHLIN:  And that’s -- our concern is, because 

-- and, again, if there was some rationale for this that we

could have addressed in -- and we asked this question --

THE COURT:  People are either going to meet the Rule

23 standards or not, in terms of whether they’re injured and

how they’re injured and whether they have commonality and

typicality and all that.  I under --

MR. COUGHLIN:  This -- but --

THE COURT:  But we need to find out who those people

are.

MR. COUGHLIN:  It -- but as a more fundamental 

matter, Your Honor, when we had our meet and confer about

whether we would accept -- and this isn’t even what they had

initially put up.  But I asked the question why?  Why are they

going to 2008?  What is the basis behind this?

THE COURT:  All right.  Well, I ask him the question.

MR. COUGHLIN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:   Okay. 

MS. DAVIS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I just want to 

add to some of the things that Mr. Coughlin mentioned and talk

about a few things that are also relevant to Honeywell,

specifically.  

I agree with you 100 percent that diligence is the

standard, Rule 16.  In fact, the cases that the plaintiffs
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themselves admonished us for not citing say that very thing, 

so I’m not sure where they were going with that.  But, in any

case, diligence is the standard.  

They have talked about depositions of site

administrator, they’ve talked about documents that they got

from -- voluminous documents that they got from PPG’s site

administrator relating to community concerns.  Mr. Coughlin 

has already pointed out that they had access to much of that

information, if not all of it, in advance of getting those

productions.  And as we pointed out in our papers, they, in

fact, drafted the new complaint before they had the benefit of

those depositions.  So, I think it’s really makeweight to say

that that is the basis for all these changes.

But setting even that aside, none of those documents

relate to Honeywell or any of the Honeywell sites.  Or the

areas around the Honeywell sites.  So, there has been no

explanation, other than what I heard today for the very first

time, which was not brought up at the meet and confer and it

was not brought up in the briefs to my knowledge, some -- 

about some study about the migration of -- a migration study

that Honeywell did, which I can’t -- therefore, I’m not

prepared to give you a date on when it was produced, because I

didn’t know that was the basis of their change to their

complaint, because they’ve never mentioned it before.  So, 

that appears to me to be a late-found excuse for having made
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these amendments.

The only -- the fact is that the only information 

that the plaintiff learned in discovery is that the named

plaintiffs, the class representatives that they have, have no

injury.  They testified that their homes weren’t tested or

either -- either they weren’t tested or they were tested and

revealed no contamination.  Their persons were not tested. 

They didn’t know whether their properties were contaminated. 

They weren’t aware of the supposedly course-changing study 

that the plaintiffs rely on to avoid the statute of

limitations.

So, you know, in light of that, it’s not surprising

that the plaintiffs have gone back to the drawing board, but 

it is too late.  There is nothing new that they learned in

discovery that prompted these changes, and all of what you’re

hearing today I think is just an attempt to talk around the

issue.

You mentioned in your conversation with Mr. Coughlin

this issue of whether there’s another class out there.  Is 

this the best or the most -- is the -- actually the 

appropriate class or is this just their attempt to get some

class certified?  I feel very strongly that there is -- this 

is not a certifiable class, even as amended, but that doesn’t

change the fact that it’s an improper amendment, it’s 

untimely, it’s improper, and it’s not made in -- for good
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cause.

And to your question about, you know, outstanding

classes and outstanding plaintiffs, Latreica Smith -- who, by

the way, was in the case, out of the case, --

THE COURT:  I know.

MS. DAVIS:  -- back in the case, with no knowledge

that -- she had no knowledge about any of this.  She was not

consulted, according to her deposition testimony.  In and out,

in and out.  She’s now out again.  And after this proposed

amended complaint came across, we actually asked the 

plaintiffs whether they were going to voluntarily dismiss her

with prejudice; the answer was no.  And we broke on that and 

we asked what the situation was and what -- all we -- all we

were told by the plaintiffs was that they don’t represent her,

they don’t think she has a claim under the current new amended

complaint, but that’s all they’re willing to say.  That seems

to us highly inappropriate.

THE COURT:  I’m sorry.  Have you deposed her?

MS. DAVIS:  We did.  We did.

THE COURT:  All right.  

MS. DAVIS:  You know, again, the issue, as you’ve

pointed out and we’ve discuss a couple of times is diligence

and not prejudice.  But we did ask about the prejudice and I --

THE COURT:  Yeah, I’d like to talk about that now.

MS. DAVIS:  -- I take -- I take the plaintiffs’ 
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claims that this will create efficiency.  You know, I don’t

know if they believe that’s true, but it’s interesting to me,

given that they’ve been unwilling to forego any discovery on

the other side.  It’s essentially -- I mean, even this week, 

we have been talking about their demands for discovery as to

sites that are no longer in the case.  So, that is -- it -- we

are prejudiced retrospectively by having to produce a ton of

material on sites that they now are no longer interested in 

and that they haven’t let go of, even to this day.  

And, you know, this is, in fact -- drawing the lines

as they have, changing the manner in which they are 

approaching identifying the class and certif -- and attempting

to certify the class is a change of theory.  I mean, they -- 

it was very clearly based on some form of dispersion from a

center point to surrounding areas and now I don’t know what it

is, and they haven’t explained what it is.  

I mean, they point to the lines drawn on the map for

PPG and they point to the fact that it has to do -- that it

comports with the Residential Inspection Program or the JCO

boundaries.  None of that has anything to do with Honeywell,

and those lines mean nothing as to Honeywell, and they have 

not explained to us why the line -- why ohne person on one 

side of the street is in the class and the person across the

street is outside of the class.  There has just been no

explanation. 
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So that, you know, there’s a lot of issues here and 

we do, you know, really object to this amendment and fear

future amendments as well.  I mean, I don’t know how many 

times we have to go through this exercise.

THE COURT:  How much -- let’s talk about the

discovery, in terms of -- let me go to the plaintiff first.

MS. DAVIS:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  If I grant this motion, what further

document discovery are you going to be seeking?

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, I think that the document

discovery has -- the actual flow of paper is very near its 

end.  We have some subpoenas out that we haven’t received

responses to yet and --

THE COURT:  But will there be new document demands

based on this if I grant the motion?

MR. GERMAN:  No, not -- not to the parties, no.

THE COURT:  And will there be a letter to the parties

suggesting they supplement their discovery responses based on

the amendment?

MR. GERMAN:  No, Your Honor.  This -- this amendment

narr --

THE COURT:  In other words, the same document 

demands, but now --

MR. GERMAN:  It’s -- this narrows discovery, it

doesn’t broaden it in any way.  Again, the maps --
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THE COURT:  So, you won’t be seeking any additional

document discovery from any of the parties, and what about for

certain -- from third parties?

MR. GERMAN:  We probably have some subpoenas out --

THE COURT:  Are they already out?

MR. GERMAN:  Most of them are out.  There may be

another one or two, but --

THE COURT:  Two?

(Discussion among counsel, off the record.)

MR. GERMAN:  There may be some environmental

contractors, but --

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, I understand you’re asking a

practical question.  It doesn’t -- you know, it doesn’t bear 

on the definition, but --

THE COURT:  Well, it bears on the motion.

MR. GERMAN:  So, we are not asking -- it’s

inconceivable, standing here right now -- this is our

representation to the Court -- that, based on this amendment 

we would need more information, what we’ve --

THE COURT:  What about depositions?

MR. GERMAN:  That we’d request more information.

THE COURT:  What about depositions?  Would it change 

-- we started -- obviously, you’ve taken some depositions. 

Where are we with depositions?
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MR. GERMAN:  I want to be clear.  This amendment will

only serve to narrow discovery.

THE COURT:  I know you make that argument.  And I --

and now you’re making it, representing it to me in court.  I

got it. 

MR. GERMAN:  I cannot -- I could give you a list of

the depositions we anticipate, but --

THE COURT:  Well, has that list or will it change if 

I grant the motion?

MR. GERMAN:  No, the -- my point is that the list

would stay the same --

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right. 

MR. GERMAN:  -- no matter what, but I can’t promise,

standing here today, that there wouldn’t be a follow-up

document request, a follow-up deposition, but that’s not

related in any way to the amendment, because this --

THE COURT:  I understand.  You answered that question.

MR. GERMAN:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  Would you be seeking more discovery based

on this amendment if I granted it?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Your Honor, the prior CMO provides for

discovery on new putative class representatives and the -- any

remaining class representative based upon the change.

THE COURT:  So, that would be three or -- two or 

three people; correct? 
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MR. COUGHLIN:  Correct.  Along with then the

associated third-party document discovery.  And we found -- 

you know, with regard to their lenders and the like.

THE COURT:  Mm-hmm.

MR. COUGHLIN:  With regards to areas that were never

in the class that I think as we’ve highlighted in blue, there

are areas that we have to change now, because they have

expanded beyond what was in the -- based upon these sites, 

what was in the previous definition.  So, there is going to be

some additional analysis and discovery.

THE COURT:  Well, what’s expanded?

MR. COUGHLIN:  If you look at Exhibit 1, which has 

the limited amount of blue --

THE COURT:  And the blue is the new stuff?

MR. COUGHLIN:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  And I think one of the plaintiffs is

even -- the new putative plaintiffs is in the blue on the

north.  But now we have totally retool expert analysis also. 

Which has been going on behind the scenes, if you will. 

THE COURT:  Right.

MR. COUGHLIN:  And so it does dramatically change the

direction of how we’re going about defending the case, 

because, as Anne said, it’s a whole new theory of liability.  

THE COURT:  Because? 
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MS. DAVIS:  Well, that -- I mean, that -- I -- 

THE COURT:  Or just remind me again why it’s a new

theory.

MS. DAVIS:  Well, it’s a new theory in the sense 

that --

THE COURT:  It’s still in the air and under the

ground.

MS. DAVIS:  But they have --

THE COURT:  And where it went --

MS. DAVIS:  But they have changed the approach with

which they are defining the class, and that is very much the

subject of what will be expert discovery in this case.  And

it’s one of the ways in which we are prejudiced, in that we

have to go back now for the fourth time --

THE COURT:  Well, they’ve define -- I want to make

sure I understand this.  This may be my fault here.

MS. DAVIS:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  They’re define -- they’re changing the

definition of where to find the damage.  Right?  No.

MR. COUGHLIN:  It’s that -- the sites have always 

been known.  Where the COPR waste has been is al -- has always

been known.

THE COURT:  Has always -- I know.

MR. COUGHLIN:  The question around, around it.

THE COURT:  How -- I --
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MR. COUGHLIN:  How are they defining around it?

THE COURT:  I know.  In other words -- and that’s a

scientific investigation.  Flowing under the -- in the -- 

under the ground.

MR. COUGHLIN:  There’s no groundwater, but --

THE COURT:  And in the air.  Right?  I mean, that’s

the only two ways to get it.  Nobody actually built pipes and

piped it right into the house or anything; correct? 

MR. COUGHLIN:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I don’t mean to -- I didn’t mean 

to be facetious; but, I mean, it’s air or ground.  Or water. 

So, it’s changing the location, not how -- is it changing how

it happened?  Or how it may have moved?

MS. DAVIS:  I don’t know the --

THE COURT:  We don’t know?

MS. DAVIS:  I don’t know. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  You -- you certainly --

MS. DAVIS:  They haven’t told us what the basis is 

for the new lines on the map.  We don’t understand why they’ve

changed it.  It’s not -- it doesn’t comport with any distance

from a site any more, so I don’t understand. 

THE COURT:  Mr. German? 

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, first of all, it’s very 

clear -- I mean, the complaint hasn’t changed all that much. 

What we’ve done is, we’ve changed the class definition.  We
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haven’t added claims, we haven’t added new causes of action, 

we haven’t changed the theory of how things moved.  The

Paragraph in the first amended complaint that said, you know,

wind --

THE COURT:  But --

MR. GERMAN:  -- wind blow and natural processes, this

is the same paragraph that’s in the current complaint.  And I

think this only goes to the point that Your Honor was making. 

Two points.  One, this is not a class certification hearing. 

And the second is, we need -- we all need an opportunity to do

our expert work.

THE COURT:  Well, but Ms. Davis has made this point a

few times, and I think it’s a fair point in the context of 

this motion and is -- well, how is Honeywell -- when you use

PPG settlement lines and -- or more or less -- how does that --

how does Honey -- how is it fair to Honeywell?  How do they

defend this case?

MR. GERMAN:  It’s the -- it’s -- it -- there are two

completely different issues.  The -- PPG -- let me take a step

back again.  There is a process; right?  There is a scheduling

order and a process.  They’ve raised the scheduling order.  It

provides for discovery and then it provides for us to get that

discovery, review it, take the depositions and consult with 

our experts.  Air experts, toxicologists, experts on fate and

migration, toxicity of chromium; things like that.  We haven’t
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done all that today.  

We have done a lot of and we’ve done it diligently. 

We took the information that we set forth on page 13 of our

brief, that we only recently obtained, and we worked with our

experts.  And our experts -- and I don’t think it’s 

appropriate for us to go into all the expert detail right now 

-- they told us that these are the areas where they anticipate

-- based on the information that was produced, these are the

areas they anticipate there to be chromium dust in these 

homes.

On top of that, we fond studies from P -- from

Honeywell -- and you asked about the Honeywell area

specifically.  We found studies and other information -- and

the experts put together, we consulted with them and it says,

you know what?  The chromium moves in this direction when --

THE COURT:  Are you --

MR. GERMAN:  -- when it’s blowing in the air.

THE COURT:  Are you still --

MR. GERMAN:  And it goes a certain distance.

THE COURT:  Are you seeking to hold Honeywell

responsible for all three classes?

MR. GERMAN:  No, and it’s very clear in the complaint

there is a conspiracy claim for their joint efforts.  And this

is -- I don’t want to quote Judge Cavanaugh’s lengthy opinion

in Interfaith, it’s a 100 page opinion, with which I refer 
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Your Honor, that goes through extensively the history of what

was done by the chromium industry in Jersey City.  

So, there is a claim that the defendants worked

together to mislead the public and regulatory agencies about

the extent of the contamination, its risks and the risk to the

surrounding community.  And Judge Wigenton already ruled,

seeing some of that information, already ruled on statute of

limitations with respect to their internal studies and what 

was represented to the public.  So, there is a conspiracy

claim, but we are not seeking to hold PPG liable for what

Honeywell did in its disposal area, or Honeywell liable for

what PPG did in its disposal area.

MS. DAVIS:  So, can -- can I just speak to that point

for one moment?  Which is that one of the additions in the new

amended complaint is paragraph 62, which reads:  “Upon

information and belief, COPR beginning -- originating at

Honeywell’s facility and COPR originating at PPG’s facility,

became commingled at both disposal areas A and B, defined

below, and impacted the respective classes.”  That is a new

allegation.  Brand new.  No understanding of the basis for it.

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, --

MR. COUGHLIN:  And contrary to the record and

statements that you’ve made.

MS. DAVIS:  Yes.

MR. GERMAN:  Your Honor, we stood in this court in

Case 2:10-cv-03345-ES-JAD   Document 456-3   Filed 09/13/17   Page 44 of 46 PageID: 10841



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Colloquy 44

front of Judge Waldor and in front of Judge Mannion for a 

year, maybe two years, and we tried to get each of these

defendants to tell us where did you put your waste, and they

stood in front of Judge Mannion and they stood in front of

Judge Waldor and they said, we don’t know, we -- we think it’s

all mixed in, it’s all commingled.  And based on that, we put

that allegation in.

But recently, after Judge Mannion twisted some arms,

sat us down in his courtroom and made us work through -- after

-- work through some of that discovery, after this proposed

amendment, they finally told us that they didn’t have evidence

that the waste was commingled.  So, for that to be raised here

today is pure gamesmanship and it’s a semantic change that

could be made to the amendment in the complaint. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  You raised it, Your Honor.  It’s not

gamesmanship.  You raised it.

MS. DAVIS:  No, Judge.  That’s a complete

misrepresentation --

THE COURT:  I’m not taking responsibility. 

MS. DAVIS:  -- of the history of this case.

THE COURT:  All right.  Listen.  I have some -- all

right.  I have an idea about this.  Prejudice, in terms of new

-- frankly, I think you just answered all my questions.  If 

you don’t know the basis for this, you’re going to need to 

take discovery on this allegation.  Number 62.  Correct? 
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MS. DAVIS:  But who is going to answer it; the

lawyers?

THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody have anything

else to say?  You’ve got these people behind you waiting.

All right.  Have you -- are we done?  I’ve heard what

I need here.  

All right.  You’ll hear from me.  Thank you. 

MR. COUGHLIN:  Thank you.

MS. DAVIS:  Thank you. 

MR. GERMAN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. McDONALD:  Thank you, Judge. 

 (Conference adjourned at 11:33 a.m.)

* * * * * * * * * *

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, TERRY L. DeMARCO, court-approved transcriber,

certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from the

electronic sound recording of the proceedings in the above-

entitled matter.

      10/21/13     S / Terry L. DeMarco      

    Date Terry L. DeMarco, AD/T 566

KLJ Transcription Service 
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·1· · · · · · · · · P R O C E E D I N G S
·2· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Number 16-2712, Halley, et
·3· ·al. versus Honeywell International, et al.
·4· ·Mr. Petrikowski (phonetic) and Mr. Rosemond
·5· ·(phonetic).· Roismon (phonetic).· Probably
·6· ·butchering both names.· Is it Roismon?
·7· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· It is Roisman, yes.· Thank
·8· ·you.
·9· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Yes.· Is it Pejorskowski or?
10· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Paciorkowski.
11· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· I'll let you pronounce
12· ·it and then I'll try to make sure I follow.
13· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Good morning, Your
14· ·Honors, Thomas Paciorkowski on behalf of Maureen
15· ·Chandra.· I'd like to reserve five minutes of
16· ·rebuttal time.
17· · · · · · · THE COURT:· That's fine.
18· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· We've been notified
19· ·that oral argument is gonna be limited to the
20· ·attorney fee and expense issues, so that's all I'm
21· ·gonna touch upon here.· With regard to those issues,
22· ·there are three main issues.· The first is that rule

Page 4

·1· ·1217 applies in this case.· The second is that the
·2· ·PPG expenses should not be taken out of the
·3· ·Honeywell settlement.· And then the third issue is
·4· ·that rule 23-H was violated.
·5· · · · · · · With regard to rule 1217, that rule
·6· ·applies to contingency fee cases involving tortuous
·7· ·conduct.· Here the tortuous conduct is product
·8· ·nuisance, trespass, strict liability, and
·9· ·negligence.· Clearly it applies in this case.
10· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Is there any conflict between
11· ·the New Jersey state laws governing attorneys fees
12· ·and rule 23-H of the federal rules?· That would
13· ·preclude a court from applying New Jersey law.· Is
14· ·there any conflict there?
15· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· I don't believe
16· ·there's any conflict that would -- that would
17· ·restrict New Jersey's rule of making the attorney
18· ·fee calculated on the net settlement as opposed to
19· ·the gross in conflict with rule 23-H.· And that's
20· ·really what -- the reason for bringing the statute
21· ·to bear is, is for that particular purpose.· And
22· ·that's the -- that's the primary purpose of that

Page 5

·1· ·statute is to compute the fee on the net recovery,
·2· ·and this court in Nitzel (phonetic) versus Resting
·3· ·House actually analyzed that statute -- that court
·4· ·rule in a personal injury case and actually said
·5· ·that it's -- it's there to protect the client
·6· ·because of the unequally bargaining power between
·7· ·the attorney and the client.
·8· · · · · · · THE COURT:· That wasn't -- that wasn't a
·9· ·class action case, was it?
10· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· No it wasn't.· It was
11· ·a personal injury case.
12· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Isn't -- isn't that a
13· ·substantial difference in the facts, then?· That is,
14· ·rule 23 applies in class action cases but was not
15· ·applied -- was not applicable in Nitzel.
16· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, I don't -- well,
17· ·when you -- when you look at whether or not
18· ·something conflicts, you have to see whether or not
19· ·you could apply the two of them at the same time,
20· ·and if you cannot apply the two, whether it be rule
21· ·23-H and the New Jersey court rule at the same time,
22· ·then there would be a conflict.· And if there is a
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·1· ·conflict, then I would say that rule 23-H, which is
·2· ·procedural, would -- would apply.
·3· · · · · · · But also in this case, if you think about
·4· ·it, that the local rule actually mandates that the
·5· ·New Jersey court rule applies to the district in New
·6· ·Jersey as well.· So the New Jersey Supreme Court has
·7· ·said that the court rule applies to New Jersey
·8· ·admitted attorneys in the state courts and in the
·9· ·federal courts in New Jersey.· So I don't think
10· ·there's any conflict between the court rule and rule
11· ·23-H.
12· · · · · · · THE COURT:· If -- if the -- the district
13· ·court in this particular case found that even if you
14· ·computed the fees after reduction for expenses, the
15· ·amount of the fee was still reasonable, what,
16· ·28.7 percent or 28.9 percent, something like that.
17· ·So why does it really matter in this case whether
18· ·the district court committed an error in the way it
19· ·went about doing it, when it ultimately concluded,
20· ·as it was required under rule 23, that the amount of
21· ·fees were reasonable?
22· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, there's --

Page 7

·1· ·there's three reasons why that's improper.· First of
·2· ·all, that enhancement, going from 25 to essentially
·3· ·29 percent, occurred in a reply brief, and you
·4· ·cannot ask for new relief in a reply brief.· We all
·5· ·know that.· So the district courts should not have
·6· ·--
·7· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- but the amount -- the
·8· ·amount never changed.
·9· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· But --
10· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- the gross -- the dollar
11· ·amount never changed.
12· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Yes, but the
13· ·percentage did.· And going back to that particular
14· ·issue, there's only two ways to get attorney fees in
15· ·a class action in -- in this circuit, and that's
16· ·through your load star or a percentage of the
17· ·recovery.· So that dollar amount is actually billed
18· ·on a 25 percent recovery off the gross.
19· · · · · · · THE COURT:· But 30 percent recoveries,
20· ·even greater than that, are not unusual in common
21· ·fund cases.
22· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· No, they're not, and
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·1· ·they -- they go as high as 33 and a third.
·2· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Or greater sometimes.
·3· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, and it's pretty
·4· ·rare to go to the 40 percent range, but there are
·5· ·cases that are cited that do 40 percent.
·6· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Yeah.
·7· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· But when you go to
·8· ·that extreme high end, you have to show
·9· ·justification for that.· When -- in this case they
10· ·asked for 25 percent and then they -- they upped it
11· ·to 29 percent in a reply brief.· And there was no
12· ·justification given to --
13· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- no, the dollar amount
14· ·remained the same.· The question is how -- how do
15· ·you do the -- the numbers?· One was 25, one was
16· ·28.7.· But don't the numbers, the actual amount
17· ·that's requested, stay the same?
18· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· The amount stays the
19· ·same.
20· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.
21· · · · · · · THE COURT:· So.
22· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· I can see that the

Page 9

·1· ·amount stays the same.
·2· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Your position is there should
·3· ·have been a re-notification on that issue?
·4· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, I believe it
·5· ·violates rule 23-H that there was not a
·6· ·re-notification, sir.· A re-notification was
·7· ·mandated and it could have been on the website.· It
·8· ·doesn't mean that you have to send a postcard notice
·9· ·to everybody and incur that expense.· But more
10· ·importantly, what's the reason from going from
11· ·25 percent to 29 percent?· It's to circumvent the
12· ·New Jersey court rule.· And this court acts as a
13· ·fiduciary to the class and you're supposed to be
14· ·looking out for the class' interest.· This court and
15· ·the district court are no longer arbitrators or
16· ·they're no longer referees, but actually stand for
17· ·the protection of the class.· And when you see the
18· ·class counsel, the only reason from going from 25 to
19· ·29 percent is to circumvent the role that's meant to
20· ·protect the class, then you have to step in and do
21· ·something about that and not allow it.· And
22· ·certainly by -- by raising that fee, that percentage
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·1· ·in a reply brief, certainly that's not allowed.
·2· ·There's many reasons not to allow that increase.
·3· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Other questions?· Okay.· Hear
·4· ·from Mr. Roisman.· We'll get you back right away.
·5· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, can I address
·6· ·the other two issues?
·7· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Go ahead.
·8· · · · · · · THE COURT:· He still has time.
·9· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Go ahead.
10· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· All right.· The issue
11· ·with regard to PPG's expenses being taken out of the
12· ·Honeywell settlement.· First of all, PPG operated on
13· ·the east side of -- the east side of Jersey City.
14· ·What they did on the east side of Jersey City had
15· ·absolutely no effect on the west side for classes A
16· ·and C.· Didn't affect their land, didn't have any
17· ·effect on contaminating their property, had no
18· ·effect on the property values.· And the same thing
19· ·as what Honeywell did on the west side.· Honeywell's
20· ·operation at its facility on the west side had
21· ·absolutely no impact on the land on the east side to
22· ·the class B land, and it had absolutely no effect on
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·1· ·the class B property values.· So these two cases,
·2· ·classes A and C against Honeywell, and class B
·3· ·against PPG, are two totally separate cases.· They
·4· ·could have been tried separately.· The only thing
·5· ·that makes them is this conspiracy charge.· And it's
·6· ·very important that what class counsel told Judge
·7· ·Dixon in 2013, he threw the settlement, they
·8· ·actually told Judges Dixon that they -- that the
·9· ·conspiracy charge is only essentially a -- a PR
10· ·issue.· What Honeywell and -- and PPG did was
11· ·conspire to misrepresent the extent of contamination
12· ·and the risk.· That's all they said about the
13· ·conspiracy fee involved, and it did not -- and they
14· ·did not seek to hold PPG liable for what Honeywell
15· ·did on its property, and they are not seeking to
16· ·hold Honeywell liable for what PPG did on its
17· ·property.· So if you're not gonna hold PPG liable
18· ·for what Honeywell did on its property and the only
19· ·contamination and the only reason for contamination
20· ·on classes A and C's properties is because of
21· ·Honeywell, and you're not gonna hold PPG liable for
22· ·that, then the recovery that you're gonna seek for
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·1· ·property contamination and loss property values only
·2· ·comes from Honeywell.· So there's really no reason
·3· ·for class A and C to litigate against and pay for
·4· ·litigation costs against PPG 'cuz there's nothing to
·5· ·be gained from it.· And in fact, if you look at the
·6· ·settlement agreement, class counsel admits that
·7· ·there's conspiracy claims won't recover anything
·8· ·above the non-conspiracy claims.· So if the -- why
·9· ·would you spend hundreds of thousands of dollars
10· ·litigating against the defendant?· There's no --
11· ·there's no possibility of you recovering anything
12· ·above what the -- the primary defendant's gonna pay
13· ·anyway.· And nobody's arguing that Honeywell didn't
14· ·have the money to pay out here.· In fact, they said
15· ·that they had plenty of cash to pay out if there was
16· ·a judgment against them.
17· · · · · · · THE COURT:· And so the -- the argument, I
18· ·take it, was that it was impossible to separate
19· ·these -- the work done on both of them in both
20· ·matters?
21· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, I -- I address
22· ·that in great detail in the briefs and, quite
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·1· ·frankly, through experience, everybody knows that
·2· ·when you hire an expert, the expert gives you an
·3· ·expert report based on specific things.· So if
·4· ·you're gonna have a loss property value claim on the
·5· ·west side, it's not gonna take into account anything
·6· ·happening on the east side.· If you're gonna have a
·7· ·loss property value claim for something that
·8· ·happened in PPG's area on the east side, how does
·9· ·that affect the west side?· And the same thing with
10· ·property contamination.· If you -- if you have
11· ·property contamination on the west side, how does
12· ·that affect anybody on the east side and vice versa?
13· ·And more importantly, I was there at that public
14· ·hearing, and I asked class counsel about their
15· ·experts doing any testing on the class property
16· ·related to the damage analysis, and he told me open
17· ·mic to everybody our experts did no testing of
18· ·anybody's property.· So I'm at a loss in how they
19· ·spent $700,000 on experts and then why you can't
20· ·separate what those experts did for PPG and what
21· ·those experts did for -- for the Honeywell case.  I
22· ·believe they can and, quite frankly, a lot of the
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·1· ·depositions that took place against -- took place
·2· ·for Honeywell's employees and for their property,
·3· ·why isn't that separable from depositions taken
·4· ·against Honeywell?· How about the documents?· They
·5· ·produced a million pages of documents and it's
·6· ·claimed that there was over a hundred thousand
·7· ·dollars in expense related to document management.
·8· ·Well, certainly you could -- you could isolate the
·9· ·millions of pages of documents for PPG and separate
10· ·that expense.· There's lots of expenses that you can
11· ·separate.· It's common sense.· But I'll admit that
12· ·there's certain owner expenses say the -- the filing
13· ·fee of 350.· Certainly that's indistinguishable if
14· ·you file two cases on that, and anything that is
15· ·truly indistinguishable, why not spread it 50/50?
16· ·For example, if you're involved in a car accident
17· ·and a taxicab and there's another passenger and
18· ·you're not -- you're not liable for that taxi cab
19· ·'cuz you're a passenger, you hire an attorney 'cuz
20· ·you're personally injured, and that same attorney
21· ·represents the -- the person next to you.· After
22· ·several years of litigation, you decide to settle.
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·1· ·Good settling, I'm gonna take it, but the passenger
·2· ·who's sitting in the backseat next to you decides
·3· ·no, I'm not gonna settle, I'm gonna take my case
·4· ·to -- to trial.· And the attorney representing both
·5· ·of you comes to you and says, well, guess what, I'm
·6· ·gonna take my -- my expenses completely out of your
·7· ·settlement and if this person that was seated next
·8· ·to you happens to win at trial, well, they'll pay
·9· ·you back.· That is completely inappropriate.  I
10· ·don't think as a fiduciary of the class you could
11· ·permit that here.· I believe that the circumstances
12· ·don't permit.
13· · · · · · · I had another issue but my time has run
14· ·out.
15· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Maria, add -- add two more
16· ·minutes, please.
17· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· You know, the other
18· ·thing is, too, is the expert report -- there was no
19· ·expert report for -- for damage amounts.· It's
20· ·what's (inaudible) absolutely no expert reports
21· ·produced for the final approval hearing.· And in
22· ·fact, class counsel said that they were not gonna be
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·1· ·producing a damage expert analysis because that
·2· ·would injure class B.· So if you're gonna withhold a
·3· ·damage report for the benefit of another class, how
·4· ·can Honeywell's -- how can that class A and C be
·5· ·charged for that damage report if it's actually
·6· ·benefiting another class?· They shouldn't be.
·7· · · · · · · The last issue is the rule 23-H.· In
·8· ·addition to raising the attorney fee in the reply
·9· ·brief which violates rule 23-H, they also violated
10· ·23-H because they never -- they never gave any
11· ·indication of what the expenses were.· When they
12· ·filed their -- their fee for attorney's fees and
13· ·expenses, the only thing class counsel produced in
14· ·that -- in that attorney fee brief was a total
15· ·dollar amount.· They said what the total dollar
16· ·amount was and how much the different law firms
17· ·paid, but they never broke -- they never said what
18· ·they spent for attorney fees -- I mean, for expert
19· ·fees or for anything else.· There was nothing that
20· ·made that review both by the -- by the class to
21· ·determine whether or not those fees were
22· ·reasonable -- whether or not those expenses were
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·1· ·reasonable and in the prosecution of this case.· And
·2· ·furthermore, when the district court asked for those
·3· ·fees, the fee expenses to be produced in camera,
·4· ·suddenly they dropped $50,000 off of them.· I don't
·5· ·believe that they -- they would have done that if
·6· ·the district court didn't ask for an in camera
·7· ·review, but their in camera view -- review
·8· ·doesn't -- doesn't satisfy -- doesn't satisfy rule
·9· ·20-H violation, because as -- as I showed the
10· ·district court never -- never brought up any of the
11· ·discrepancies between what class counsel said the
12· ·expenses were with regard to the claims
13· ·administrative.· Class counsel in his declaration
14· ·said that the claims administrator's expenses were
15· ·gonna be between a hundred and $120,000 based on
16· ·negotiations and discussions with the claims
17· ·administrator, and ultimately after the -- the
18· ·period to object and -- and (inaudible) hearing was
19· ·over, suddenly a $220,000 bill comes in, a hundred
20· ·thousand dollars over what was declared in class
21· ·counsel's representation to the court, and the
22· ·district court said nothing.· Didn't even reference
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·1· ·it in her opinion.· And then if you take a look at
·2· ·that -- at that claims administrator's bill,
·3· ·something like almost $18,000 for nothing more than
·4· ·quality assurance.· Another $50,000 for a project
·5· ·management, what is that?· If I filed a fee
·6· ·application with the court and put quality
·7· ·assurance, would a court grant me $18,000 in fees
·8· ·for nothing more than quality assurance or $53,000
·9· ·for project management?· It just looks -- it
10· ·certainly raises the question whether or not the
11· ·district court adequately looked into the issue of
12· ·the -- of the expenses in this case.
13· · · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.
14· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Thank you.
15· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Thank you very much.· Hear
16· ·from Mr. Roisman.
17· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· May it please the court,
18· ·Anthony Roisman for the class.· Let me start with
19· ·the New Jersey statute.· It seems to me that this is
20· ·actually a nonissue.· Both the New Jersey statute
21· ·and rule 23-H are based upon setting an attorney's
22· ·fee based upon what is reasonable.· The only time
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·1· ·that the provisions of the New Jersey statute could
·2· ·possibly come into play is if the total recovery in
·3· ·the case were $2 million or less under the version
·4· ·that existed at the time this case was originally
·5· ·filed.· It's now $3 million or less.· In New Jersey
·6· ·there's a staggered provision, and in that staggered
·7· ·provision, the way the fee is calculated is it's
·8· ·calculated on the net recovery.· And that makes a
·9· ·difference, because you get 33 and a third percent.
10· ·If it's the gross, you get more fee.· If it's the
11· ·net, we get less fee at the 33 and a third percent
12· ·level.· But that statute provides both in sub
13· ·section C-5 and in subsection F that if the
14· ·attorneys feel that the fee is not adequate, they
15· ·should ask for a reasonable fee and the court will
16· ·decide whether it's reasonable.· That's exactly the
17· ·same standard as the prize under 23-H.
18· · · · · · · So in the original notice that went to
19· ·the class regarding what the fee would be, we
20· ·indicated we wanted a fee of roughly two and a half
21· ·million dollars.· We then explained that it was
22· ·reasonable because it was 25 percent of the gross,
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·1· ·which is what the district court applied and what
·2· ·this court has routinely applied in class action
·3· ·cases.· You look at the gross recovery.· Later when
·4· ·counsel raised the issue, well, that you should have
·5· ·calculated it on the basis of the net, we explained
·6· ·that if you calculated on the basis of the net, you
·7· ·would still have a reasonable fee and it was at a --
·8· ·at a percentage that was well within the range that
·9· ·this court and other courts have recognized as
10· ·acceptable in class action cases when the amounts
11· ·recovered are, say, under a hundred million dollars.
12· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Now, the -- just back to the
13· ·basics, you have the rules of professional conduct
14· ·which give you, what, roughly eight factors in New
15· ·Jersey?
16· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· Yes.
17· · · · · · · THE COURT:· And if you had 23-H you would
18· ·have (inaudible) and credential factors.· Is the
19· ·authorizing of attorneys fees, is that substantive
20· ·so you would apply state law or is it procedural,
21· ·in -- in your view?
22· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· In my view?

Page 21

·1· · · · · · · THE COURT:· And you're saying it makes no
·2· ·difference, I got it.
·3· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· Right.· No, no, I -- at
·4· ·first I thought it was substantive, okay, because
·5· ·there is a court case in which the court was asked
·6· ·to answer that very question, whether or not fees
·7· ·were substantive or procedural.· But in this case,
·8· ·which is covered by CATHRA, the provision that gives
·9· ·this court jurisdiction is a provision that's part
10· ·of rule of 28 U.S. code 1332 which is diversity.
11· ·And so we're in -- we have a unique version of
12· ·diversity here.· It's not complete diversity.· It's
13· ·the special CATHRA diversity.· In that case we would
14· ·look to the state law for substance and we'd look to
15· ·the federal law for procedure.· I think candidly
16· ·that the best interpretation of that -- of those
17· ·cases is that the attorneys fee provision is a
18· ·substantive provision.· Now, personally, if this
19· ·were that issue before this court, I would present
20· ·you a brief as to why I think that earlier decision
21· ·called it substantive is incorrect.· But for the
22· ·moment, let's assume that it is substantive.· Even
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·1· ·if it's substantive --
·2· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- what makes attorneys fees
·3· ·procedural?
·4· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· What makes them procedural,
·5· ·in -- in my judgment, is that under the federal
·6· ·rule, they come up as a provision that relates to
·7· ·how you calculate the fee of the attorney in a
·8· ·process, 23-H is a process provision.· So in that
·9· ·sense I would see it as a procedural rule rather
10· ·than a substantive.· But as I said, and, candidly,
11· ·had not really prepared to address extensively this
12· ·question, I don't think it matters if it's
13· ·substantive or procedural for this case, because
14· ·both rules take you to the same test, is the fee
15· ·request reasonable, did we give the class notice of
16· ·what fee we wanted, we did.· And we used the
17· ·25 percent or later the 28.7 percent and then even
18· ·the load star, all of which were designed to show
19· ·why two and a half million was a reasonable number.
20· ·Counsel for the appellant has presented it as though
21· ·we calculated the fee by taking a 25 percent, and
22· ·that's not what actually happened.
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·1· · · · · · · THE COURT:· But -- but when you look at

·2· ·23-H only, it says in a certified class action, a
·3· ·court may award reasonable attorneys fees and
·4· ·non-taxable cost that are authorized by law or the
·5· ·party's agreement, and here there's no agreement.
·6· ·Then it goes the following procedures apply.· So the
·7· ·procedures seem to be separated from that first

·8· ·sentence, which is are authorized by law and it
·9· ·would seem that authorized by law wouldn't be
10· ·CATHRA.· It would be, would -- would it not, the New
11· ·Jersey law?
12· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· The -- it could be.· It

13· ·could also be that that provision is related to
14· ·those statutes that are fee shifting statutes, which
15· ·we don't have involved here.· There are a whole
16· ·group of both federal and state laws that include
17· ·fee -- fee shifting statutes, and that could be what
18· ·that sentence is applied to, that and -- so in this

19· ·case there is no statute that specifies what the fee
20· ·should be beyond this generic statement that the
21· ·fees are to be reasonable.
22· · · · · · · THE COURT:· So if -- if New Jersey were
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·1· ·to pay a statute saying that under no -- under no
·2· ·exception attorney's fees in a class action
·3· ·involving common fund either in federal -- either in
·4· ·a diversity case or a CATHRA case in federal court
·5· ·or a class action in state court, could not be more
·6· ·than five percent of the common fund, what -- what
·7· ·is your answer then?· Is that substantive or
·8· ·procedural?
·9· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· To me as a lawyer it's very
10· ·substantive, Your Honor, but I think probably as a
11· ·legal matter it is probably procedural.· And as you
12· ·know, CATHRA has a fee provision in it --
13· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- sure.
14· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· -- and it does apply here.
15· ·It applies to the coupon cases, which this -- which
16· ·this is not.· And -- and I -- I think that that's a
17· ·procedural rule.· But as I -- as I said, it's not an
18· ·issue that -- that I have carefully examined for
19· ·purposes of this argument and I apologize for that.
20· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Oh, no apology is necessary.
21· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· I mean, it's been a long
22· ·time since I was in law school, but that difference
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·1· ·was always fascinating.· I tried to avoid getting
·2· ·fascinated and tried to stay focused for this, so I
·3· ·would go back to the fact I don't think it matters,
·4· ·but my -- my -- my gut tells me I think it's
·5· ·procedural.

·6· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Could you address the
·7· ·argument of your colleague adversary that the PPG
·8· ·costs should have been separated out or you should
·9· ·have used a finer tooth to separate out those costs?
10· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· Sure, yes, yes.· I believe

11· ·that argument is based on a -- a profound
12· ·misunderstanding of what this case is about.· So
13· ·give me a moment to sort of put it into context.
14· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.
15· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· This case started because
16· ·the government identified the area of Jersey City as

17· ·heavily contaminated with chromium, a known human
18· ·carcinogen.· And the government health agency, the
19· ·Agency for Toxic Substances Disease Registry,
20· ·prepared a report that found a coincidence, a
21· ·correlation between where people live and where dump

22· ·sites of chrome were located in Jersey City.· This
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·1· ·was not laying ground work for a case, as I think
·2· ·this court is sometimes looked at when it -- it --
·3· ·that evaluating a fee.· This is basically
·4· ·identifying the area where a case might be built.
·5· ·So when we bring this case, we start based upon what
·6· ·the ATSDR has found, namely that the danger area's a
·7· ·quarter mile from the dump and that there are 145
·8· ·dump sites in New Jersey.· All we know about
·9· ·Honeywell and PPG at that point is that they are the
10· ·major producers of chrome in that area, because they
11· ·run essentially the same factories.· They just --
12· ·they're competitors producing the same product.· We
13· ·spend a huge amount of time and expenses trying to
14· ·figure out what happened to the chrome that was in
15· ·those dump sites.· The ATSDR never did a study of
16· ·where it went.· So we hired experts to do what are
17· ·called source term investigations, determine how
18· ·much chrome could have been released from those
19· ·sites.· They looked at aerial photographs, they
20· ·looked at historical records, and of course we took
21· ·discovery and tried to get documents from Honeywell
22· ·and PPG that would tell us how much chrome did you
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·1· ·produce, where did you send the chrome waste after

·2· ·you did the production.· They fought us extensively

·3· ·on that.· We did a lot of motions practice on that.

·4· ·We did a lot of discovery disputes over that.· And

·5· ·that work was based upon trying to find out did

·6· ·Honeywell and PPG use the same sites to dump their

·7· ·waste at.

·8· · · · · · · So at that stage of the case, which was

·9· ·for the first couple of years, we believed that

10· ·these two companies, which refused to tell us where

11· ·they dump their waste and led us to believe that

12· ·they were co-mingled, that we were doing research on

13· ·two companies that were simultaneously dumping toxic

14· ·waste in these sites that were the source of the

15· ·contamination that was affecting our clients.· As we

16· ·worked our way through discovery, we eventually came

17· ·to realize that, one, there were many fewer dump

18· ·sites that were really at risk.· This was thanks to

19· ·the work of our experts, so we narrowed the number

20· ·of dump sites down from 145 to, like, 27, I think.

21· ·And, secondly, that we could not find any direct

22· ·evidence even though the defendants had told us that
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·1· ·they had been using the sites jointly, that they
·2· ·actually did, and finally they said no, we didn't.
·3· ·We didn't co-mingle them.· That didn't come up until
·4· ·the end of 2013.· At that point in time, in January
·5· ·of 2014, we prepared a complaint that recognized
·6· ·that it was probably separate damage to the class A
·7· ·and C from Honeywell and class B from PPG as a
·8· ·result of the dump sites and as a result of their
·9· ·production facilities.
10· · · · · · · Now, at that point if you look -- and we
11· ·indicated this in our filings -- the expert fees
12· ·which, were by far the largest number.· I mean, out
13· ·of the total amount of money that was spent on the
14· ·case, $700,000 was in attorney's fees -- excuse me,
15· ·was in expert witness fees.· We then spent a quarter
16· ·of a million dollars on expert witnesses to help pin
17· ·down PPG's contribution to the contamination that
18· ·was going on in the area where that class was
19· ·residing.· We took that money out of the costs.· We
20· ·did not include that money in the cost.· But until
21· ·we were at that point in discovery and until our
22· ·experts got -- righted us, we didn't know whether or
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·1· ·not these two companies were jointly causing the
·2· ·problem at these various sites --
·3· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- well, why shouldn't there
·4· ·have been some -- a portion of the -- of the costs
·5· ·so that a percentage would be attributable to PPG?
·6· ·Seems like if you get a recovery against PPG they're
·7· ·skating free on costs.
·8· · · · · · · MR. ROISMAN:· No, no.· No, we've agreed,
·9· ·and -- and I'll say it again in open court, that if
10· ·and when we are successful in recovering money from
11· ·PPG, we would then approach the district court at
12· ·that point to allocate a portion of these costs to
13· ·the PPG resolution, and we would then have a fund of
14· ·money that we would be able to effectively
15· ·distribute back to the A and C class.· But, unless
16· ·and until that happens, all that money that was
17· ·spent that to some extent was investigating PPG
18· ·activities, was for the benefit of the A and C class
19· ·also.· It wasn't that it was of no benefit to them
20· ·and only of benefit to class B.
21· · · · · · · On top of that, the central issue in the
22· ·case as it's now evolved and as we finally were able
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·1· ·to -- to reach it with the settlement with

·2· ·Honeywell, is that the primary source of the

·3· ·contamination is production activity rather than

·4· ·dumping activity.· The production activity means how

·5· ·much of the chrome ran out of the facilities where

·6· ·the chrome was being processed.· Honeywell and PPG

·7· ·each engaged in essentially the same activity.· But

·8· ·their records were grossly inconsistent.· Honeywell

·9· ·would tell us how much stuff went up a particular

10· ·stack, but not the temperature of it.· PPG would

11· ·tell us what the temperature was, but not how much

12· ·went up.· In order to do what's called an air

13· ·dispersion model, the air dispersion expert has to

14· ·know the details of what actually goes up the stack,

15· ·what the size of each particle is, what the

16· ·temperature was when it goes up the stack, what the

17· ·timing was, was it day or night?· What the moisture

18· ·content was.· We needed to get data from both PPG

19· ·and Honeywell to finally put together a combination

20· ·of understanding how do you make chrome waste go up

21· ·the stack, and there were dozens of stacks at both

22· ·facilities, each stack connected to a different
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·1· ·piece of equipment that did something different in
·2· ·the process.· So we're looking at a combination of
·3· ·things that are impossible to not see the benefit to
·4· ·everybody, A, B, and C, of having all that data.
·5· · · · · · · Now, could you try to split that up now?
·6· ·Could you now try to say, okay, a certain amount
·7· ·goes to PPG and a certain amount goes to Honeywell?
·8· ·In theory, yes.· But I would suggest that that would
·9· ·be a very dangerous and inappropriate course to
10· ·take.· If this court or the district court on remand
11· ·were to tell us take 30 percent of the costs that
12· ·went to this case up until now that you haven't
13· ·already charged to PPG and assign them to PPG and
14· ·later we get a settlement with PPG and a different
15· ·court, not bound by what this court does because the
16· ·class B is not party to this -- part of the
17· ·litigation, not bound by that, tells us no, no, it's
18· ·not 30 percent.· It's only 20 percent.· Then we're
19· ·left having expended that money and not being able
20· ·to recover it.
21· · · · · · · On the alternative, the proposal that we
22· ·put forward and the commitment we've made is if and
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·1· ·when that case is resolved, we will provide a system

·2· ·by which the moneys can be allocated based upon the

·3· ·whole record with all the evidence available to

·4· ·decide how it outta be divided up.· And that's what

·5· ·we would propose be done.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Thank you, sir.

·7· ·Paciorkowski.

·8· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Yes.· The problem with

·9· ·what you just heard was that the Honeywell class

10· ·takes the contingent risk of a recovery in the PPG

11· ·case.· If there's no recovery, who -- who gets stuck

12· ·with the entire expense bill?· The Honeywell class.

13· ·Where as when class counsel takes a case on a

14· ·contingency fee -- fee basis, representing the PPG

15· ·class, which is class B, and there's no recovery,

16· ·shouldn't it be class counsel who -- who suffers the

17· ·loss of those expenses if they don't get a recovery?

18· · · · · · · THE COURT:· How -- how much are we

19· ·talking about with regard to those particular

20· ·expenses that are being contested?

21· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Well, the expenses

22· ·right now are over a million dollars.· So if you
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·1· ·slice them down the middle, if they're truly
·2· ·indistinguishable and you can't apportion them
·3· ·equally through some -- some measure of using a fine
·4· ·comb or whatever, then -- then apportion them
·5· ·equally.· 50/50.· And those expenses would be in the
·6· ·neighborhood of somewhere 500 to $700,000.
·7· · · · · · · The other issue that was -- it wasn't
·8· ·asked of me, but it was asked of opposing counsel
·9· ·here, whether or not the attorney fee issue is
10· ·procedural or subsudance -- sub -- substantive.· The
11· ·attorney fee issue is really a matter of contract
12· ·law.· Because the New Jersey court rule 1217
13· ·mandates that in a -- in a retainer --
14· · · · · · · THE COURT:· -- the contract has to
15· ·provide X or Y or Z.
16· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· It's a contract
17· ·action.· And this case was brought in state court,
18· ·so that that retainer agreement with class counsel
19· ·is under New Jersey law.· So when it gets removed to
20· ·federal court, that contract under the enabling
21· ·rule's still valid.· That controls.· The contract
22· ·between counsel and the client controls.· The

Case 2:10-cv-03345-ES-JAD   Document 456-4   Filed 09/13/17   Page 11 of 23 PageID: 10854

http://www.deposition.com


Page 34

·1· ·procedural aspect of whatever the -- the Federal

·2· ·Rules of Civil Procedure cannot overrule a -- a

·3· ·contract between the client and his attorney because

·4· ·of the enabling rule.

·5· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · MR. PACIORKOWSKI:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·7· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Thank you very much.· Thank

·8· ·you both, counsel.· Very well presented arguments.

·9· ·And we'll take the matter under --

10· · · · · · · (The recording was concluded.)
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Page 35
·1· · · · · · · · CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER

·2· · · · · · ·I, Jackie A. Scheer, do hereby certify

·3· ·that the foregoing transcript is a true and correct

·4· ·record of the recorded proceedings; that said

·5· ·proceedings were transcribed to the best of my

·6· ·ability from the audio recording as provided; and

·7· ·that I am neither counsel for, related to, nor

·8· ·employed by any of the parties to this case and have

·9· ·no interest, financial or otherwise in its outcome.
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